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At Virgin Money we have a very simple ambition:
to make everyone better off.

Customers, colleagues, communities, corporate partners

and our company.

Highlights in 2012 include:

Customers

Over

1.2 million

new products were bought by
customers dunng the year, while
our customer Lounges won the
Banking category at the UK
Customer Expertence Awards

Corporate partners

Over

4,000

of our intermediary partners said they
were “very hikely to recommend” us when
considering therir client’s mortgage

Cover photo the Virgin Money Lounge, Norwich

Colleagues

Over

99.7%

of our colleagues signed up to
new terms and conditions after
the integration of Virgin Money
and Northern Rock

Company

QOur net interest margin grew by

54%

from O 35% to 0 54% as we grew both our
mortgage and deposit books, and unde[t_o_qk__ o

two successful RMBS 1ssues

Company

Corporate
partners

" Everyone’s
better off

Communities

Over

£72 million

was donated to chanties in 2012
through Virgin Money Giving, our
not-for-profit onkine donation
service

Customers

Colleagues

Communities
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An introduction to Virgin Money

On 1 January 2012, Virgin Money acquired Northern Rock plc The two businesses were
complementary, and their combination has created a retail bank with a wide product range
and a broad distribution capability.

As a challenger bank that 1s aiming to do things better for customers

» we believe In simple, honest, transparent products that treat
customers fairly

» we believe that customers should be able to deal with us through the
channel of their choice

» we believe in creating a culture where customer service I1s the prionty

» we believe that we have a responsibility to builld and support the
communities we serve

The ambition to make everyone better off sits at the heart of our business
and underpins the way we go about doing business today, as well as the
approach we are taking to creating products and services for the future

We believe that by building a bank that 2ims to make everyone better off,
we can deliver supernor returns to our shareholders

Our product range

We offer a broad range of products to our customers across five key categories

Savings Insurance
*» Easy access ?» Travel
> Fixed term » Home
?» Cash ISAs * Motor
> Charity > Pet Investments
> Business
Investments
» Children's o
¥ Stocks and shares ISAs ? g
. [ -
Mortgages > Unit trusts -,
> Residential > Personal pensions -
> Buy-to-let * Pension annuity service
(with The Partnership Group)
Cards » Financial planning service
> Credit (with Legal & General)

¥ Prepaid
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Qur distribution mix

® Online

# Telephone

© Store

¢ Corporate partner

Based on 2012 sales

»
»
&
*
] q‘.l
n
i
- =
. .
= »
A ‘w -
-
® Qur Stores L
O Our Lounges L - Cxe
® Our Offices »
e o
E 2 T »
S
=
» -

Our distribution capability

We aim to make it easy for our customers to
deal with us through the channel of their choice

Our simple and straightforward internet site 15
the most popular channel for customers when
purchasing cur products Virginmoney com now
receives aver 14 million visits per year, 25% of
which are made using mobile devices or tablets

All our products are also avalable on the telephone
for customers locking for additional support when
making their purchase decisions Qur call centres
handle over 5 million calls per year

Many of our mortgage customers seek advice when
making such a significant financial decision, and

we are proud to work with over 8,000 intermediary
partners naticnaily

For those customers that prefer to deal with us
face to face, we have 75 Virgin Money Stores
nationally Qur Stores are warm and welcoming
places, designed to make 1t easy for our customers
to sort out their money quickly and easily

We also have Virgin Money Lounges in Edinburgh,
Manchester and Norwich Gur Lounges are
designed to be places where our customers
and our communities can come together

They are free to use and offer tea, coffee and
snacks as well as newspapers and wi-fi Speciai
customer-only events are held in our Lounges,
and community groups c¢an use them in the
support of the work they do Lounges are an
important part of our proposition, as they serve to
highhight our differentiation and create an
opportunity for both customer retention and
customer recommendation, reducing our new
customer acquisition cost
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Chairman’s statement

Sir David Clementy
Chairman

2012 was a transformational year for
Virgin Money, during which we completed
the acquisition of Northern Rock, delivered
its integration smoothly and successfully,
achieved good growth in deposits and
mortgages and planned for the future of
our credit card business.

Results for 2012

As a result of the growth in deposits and in mortgages and
the reduction in costs across the combined business, Virgin
Money reduced the loss on the combined business, before
tax and before exceptional items, from £59 1 million in 2011
to £8 4 million in 2012 We traded profitably in each of the
last four months of the year

After exceptional iterns, the statutory profit before tax was
£150 6 million in 2012, compared to Virgin Money Holding's
profit before tax of £23 5 million in 2011 At the end of 2012,
our core Tier 1 capital ratio was 16 4% and our Tier 1 capital
ratio was 19 9% Our Lhquidity position remained strong, and
comfortably above our regulatory requirements

Vision and strategy

Qurwvision for the combined business is to be an effective
challenger bank and a credible alternative to the large
wncumbent banks, whitst holding true to our phitosophy of
making ‘everyone better off’ under which we aim to offer fair
value to all stakeholders

Ourstrategy 1s intended to deliver growth that 1s stable

and sustainable Ourbusiness strategy is simple we aim to
offer a broad range of retail financial products, with fair and
transparent pricing and with good customer service, through
the channels our customers prefer to use In doing this, we
alim to build on the pre-consumer and pro-competition
credentials of the Virgin brand Cur financial strategyis
low-risk we give pnonty to responsible management of
our balance sheet, with a conservative approach to capital
and hquidity

There are two significant strategic developments to report
forthe business the acquisition of Northern Rock plc at

the beginning of the year and the acquisition of a Virgin
credit card portfolio from MBNA shortly after the end of the
year Both are \important steps forward towards achieving
Our VISION
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The acquisttion of Northern Rock plc

The acquisttion of Northern Rock plc was cormpleted on
1January 2012 There was an excellent fit between the two
businesses Northern Rock had strong positions in retail deposits
and mortgages, a national network of 75 branches and excellent
relationships with mortgage intermedianes, while Virgin Money
was strong in credit products, savings and tnvestment products
and protection products, and had good capabtlities in internet
and telephone distribution

During 2012 our primary focus was to deliver asmooth and
successful integration of the acquired business All elements
of the integration were completed successFully during the year
At the same trne, a comprehensive review of costs was carried
out across the combined business and significant cost savings
delivered We do not believe that these cost savings will reduce
our abthty to support future growth

The acquisition of a Virgin credit card portfolio from MBNA

In August, we agreed in principle to acquire from MBNA a portfotio
of £1 04 bilhon of Virgin credit cards which MBNA had managed for
us since 2002 This acquistion was completed on 18 January 2013
and so 1s not reflected in our results for 2012 This transaction arose
from Bank of Amertca’s announcement, in August 2011, that it

was considening disposing of its European card businesses While
we are grateful for the support which MBNA has given us over the
last decade, we are confident that we now have sufficient scale and
expenence to manage our own future in this market, where Virgin
Money has atready been successful

Regulatory developments

Virgin Money's aspiration to compete effectively in retait banking
1s entirely consistent with regulatory developments in 2012
Durning the year the Government issued a White Paper and then

a draft Bill to implement the recommendations of the Independent
Commission on Banking {ICB) The ICB's recommendations to
improve transparency in personal current accounts and to make
it easter for customers to switch banks will support greater
competition in retall banking The ICB also made recommendations
about subsidiansation and ring-Fencing to improve financial
stability While this will require structural changes in large unversal
banks in the UK, Virgin Mcney inits current form already complies
fully with the proposed requirements for a ring-fenced retail bank

Further support for a more competitive environment tn retail
banking will come from the Government’s decision to give a
compelition objective to the Financial Conduct Authonty, which
wilt be established in Aprd 2013 We fully support the Parhamentary
Comrmussion on Banking Standards, with its focus on improving
banking standards and trust in banking and we agree with the
view, imphicit in questions asked by the Commussion, that greater
competition can make a contnbution to improving standards to
the benefit of all stakeholders

Colleagues

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Management
and all Staff For therr commitment and hard work during this
transFormatwonal year, particularly those who delivered the
successful integration programme

Qutlook

Following the acquisitions of Northern Rock and the credit card
portfolio, we believe that we have lawd the Foundations for a
bankwhich, under the Virgin Money brand, will be posttively
different from the large incumbent banks and able to compete
effectively with them, and able to respond positively to regulatory
developments supporting greater competition and better
standards in banking

Sir David Clement
Chaiwrman
20 March 2013
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Chief Executive’s Review

Jayne-Anne Gadhia
Chief Executive Officer

After compietion of the acquisition

of Northern Rock on 1 January

2012 our principal nttiatives
were an integration programme to bring
the two former businesses together under
the Virgin Money brand and a cost
management programme to reduce costs
across the combined business. Both of these
programmes were completed successfully
dunng 2012.

Dunng the year, our success in growing
mortgages and deposits demonstrated
the strength of the Virgin Money brand
In banking

The acquisition of a Virgin credit card
portfolio, after the year end, further
enhanced our ability to meet the needs
of consumers across a broad range of
retail financial products and to

offer an attractive alternative

to the large incumbent banks.

fntegration programme

After completion of the acquisition of Northern Rock, we
moved quickly to establish the leadership team and governance
frameworl for the combined business Sir Dawd Clermentiwas
appownted as Chairman of Northemn Rock plc, and appolntments
were also made to the Virgin Money Executive Team and to other
senigr management posibions to ensure clear leadership was
evident in the business from the outset

A dedicated integration programme team was established

to plan and deliver integration duning the remainder of the year
A key prionty for early 2012 was the refinerent and approval of
detailed plans within the integration programme

Over the summer months an extensive programme of
customer and employee communications was undertaken
Buring this penod, we opened our first Virgin Money store, in
Guildford, rebranded all the other 74 Northern Rock branches as
Virgin Money stores, and wnproved the facilities at the Former
Naorthern Rock site in Gosforth These changes were well-
recewed by customers and employees

After rmonths of preparation, the full rebranding from Northern
Rock to Virgin Money was compieted successfully in October

The Anal element of integratton was the alignment of employee
terms and conditions across the combined business In October,
new terms and condibons were offered to all employees By the
deadline in early Novemnber, 99 7% of employees had accepted
the new terms and conditions The small balance included pecple
about to leave or retire

Cost management programme

The cost income ratio of the acquired Northern Rock

business was 223% 0 2011 This refected relatively low
income, because of the low-nsk nature of the mortgage book
and the high level of excess liguidity held on the balance sheet

A cost management programme was established to identify
and elimnate costs not necessary forthe combined business
Cost savings were achieved in atl areas except marketing and
advertising in which we invested further in order to increase
awareness of the expanded Virgin Meney business As a result
of this programme, our operating expenses fell from £252 9
millionn 2011 to £228 3 mitlionin 2012




We delivered this cost reducticn whilst keeping our promise that
there would be no compulsory redundancies 1n Gosforth as a result
of the acquisition

Business performance in 2012

The net interest income of the combined business increased from
£69 2 millton 1n 2011 to £105 3 million in 2012 This increase
reflects our success in growing our mortgage book by €2 7 blion
and our retait deposit book by £1 8 bilhon across the year, and

n making two 1ssues of residential mortgage-backed securities
{RMBS) For a total of £1 7 billion Over 2012, our net interest margin
tncreased from 0 35% Lo 0 54%

Mortgage lending

The acquired business of Northern Rock serviced mortgages
amounting to £14 0 bilion at 1 January 2012 Dunng 2012, we

grew our mortgage book by £2 3 bilhon, excluding acquisttions, and
provided 31% of net mortgage lending in the UK Our gross mortgage
lending was £4 9 billion, and our share of gross mortgage lending was
3 4%, hugher than that achieved by Northern Rock in any year since
2008 In growing our mortgage book, we maintained quality in terms
of distribution by LTV band, while increasing our overall book margin

In July, we bought from Northern Rock (Asset Management) plc

a further £466 4 million of mortgages of equivalent quality to the
mortgages acquired an 1 January This acquistbion enabled us to
deptoy some of the excess hquidity that came with the Northern
Rock acquisition

Retail deposits and Funding

The acquired business of Northern Rock had retail deposits
amounting to €16 2 billion at 1 january 2012 {excluding the tnsh
retail book which was sold on 3 January 2012) During the year,
despite strong cornpetition, we increased our retad deposits by

£1 8 bullion, which was greater than the amount raised by Northern
Rock in any year since 2008 The strong inflow in the early months
of the year confirmed the appeal of a Virgin Money branded deposit
product, but we held back from Further acquisition later in 2012
because of the substantial amount of excess deposits we had
already attracted

Nen-interest income

The non-interest income of the combined business was €117 6
mulion i 2012, compared with £129 5 millonin 2017 Our
non-interest income was tmpacted by the requirement of our
credit card partner MBNA, a subsidiary of Bank of America, to
it the volurme of new credit card sales during the perod that
they considered the sale of their European cards business

In January 2013, we announced that we had agreed to buy a Virgin
credit card portfolio of €1 04 bilhon from our card partner MBNA. The
portfolio acquisition represents a proportton of the book previously
managed for us by MBNA under a Strategic Partnership Agreement,
{"SPA”} The remainder of the portfolio operated under the SPA 1s now
wholly owned by MBNA Under the agreement the Group takes the
economic benefit of the book immediately with operational transfer
of our customers to Virgin Money inthe first half of 2014 Thisis

an important step in broadening the product set we can offer to
consumers and it atlows us to grow Further in a market we know well
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Giving and community

Virgin Money Giving makes it easy for people to give money online
to charities of thetr chotce By the end of 2012, almost 4 million
donations totalling almost €160 million (including Gift Aid) had
been made to the more than 6,500 chanties registered with us
since Virgin Money Giving's launch in 2009

Virgin Money Giving deducts a fee of 2% of the arnount donated
to cover the costs involved in card processing and the collection
of Gift Aud, but because Virgin Money Giving is a not-for-profit
organisation, it charges sigmificantly lower fees than its major
competitor meaning charities receive more money We estimate
that the cumulative benefit to charities from these lower Fees, up
to the end of 2012, was £5 1 muithon Virgin Money Giving 1s an
excellent example of our ambition to make everyone better off

In February, we added a third Virgin Money Lounge, n Manchester, to
our existing Lounges in Nenwich and Edinburgh On average, about 500
customers visit our three Lounges each day and, duning 2012, nearly
100 community, charity and customer events were held in them

During the year, we continued our sponsarships of the London
Marathon, and in Edinburgh, the Fringe on the High Street, which
supports Free street performances on the Royal Mile during the
Fringe Festival, and the Fireworks Concert in Princes Street Gardens,
the grande finale of the Edinburgh International Festival

Qutlook

During 2012, through cur acquisition of Northern Rock, and our
agreement to buy the credit card portfolio, we have made good
progress on building a retail-only bank with broad and deep
capabilities Qur objective, however, s not simply to bulld a bigger
bank, but to butld a better kind of bank, offering straightforward,
no-nonsense products that consumers can trust, supported by
good customer service and high standards In the enlarged Virgin
Money we will continue to pursue our ambition to make everyone
better off This means continuing to offer good value products for
cansumers, providing employees with a great place to work, being
a good partnerwith suppliers, and making a contribution to the
communities in which we operate, while delivening an appropriate
return For our shareholders




08 | Virgin Money Group Annual Report 2012

Virgin Money Board

Sir David Clement
MA, MBA
Chairman

Sir Dawvid was Chaurman of Prudentzal
ple from 2002 to 2008 Before joining
the Prudentual, Sir David was Deputy
Governor of the Bank of England

fram 1997 to 2002 in addition to s
membership of the Monetary Policy
Committee, Sir David was responsible
for the day-to-day management of the
Bank and had specific responsibility for
the Bank's work on Financial Stabnty
During this penod, hewas also a
non-executive director of the Financial
Services Authority Prior to this,

S David worked at Kleinwort Benson
for 22 years including as Chief Executive
and subsequentlyVice Chairman

Gordon McCallum ma MBA
Non-Executive
Director

Gordan s a sentor partner at the
Virgin Group He 1s Charrman of
Virgin Enterprises Limited and 1s a
Director of Virgin Group Holdings

He led the strategic development of
the Virgin Group from 1998 to 2012,
first as Group Strategy Dtrector and
then as CEQC of Virgin Management
Limited Gordon currently sits on the
Boards of Virgtn Media and Virgin
Mobule in France Gordon has been
mnvolved in the development of Virgin
Money since 1998 Priortojoining
Virgin Management, Gordon was a
Management Consultant at McKinsey

Colin Keogh ma, mBA
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Colin 1s Chairman of the Risk
Committee and of the Remuneration
Committee He also sits on the Audit
Committee A qualified Barrister,
Colin spent 24 years working at
Close Brothers Group plc, including
8 years as Group Chief Executive
from 2002 to 2009 He was
previously Chief Executive of the
Asset Management Division from
1998 to 2002, and before that Chief
Executive and then Charman of the
Corporate Finance Division between
1995 and 1998

4

Patnck McCall BSc Econ
Non-Executive
Director

Patrick 1s a senwor partner at the
Virgin Group He has worked for

the Group for over 10 years Hes
the Co-Chairman of Virgin Raut and
Chairman of Virgin Galactic Heis
also a Director of Virgin Active and
Virgin Care and Chaur of Trustees
For Virgtn Unite, Virgin Group’s
not-for-profit Foundation Priorto
jotming the Virgin Group, Patrick was
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
Vine Telecom and before that was
an investment banker at SG Warburg
and then at SBC Warburg

Norman McLuskie ca
Independent
Non-Executive
Director

Norman s Chairman ofthe Audit
Committee and of the Balance Sheet
Committee A Chartered Accountant,
Norman retired from the Board ofthe
RBS Group in 2004 Dunng his career
of more than 25 years at RBS, he was
Deputy Chief Executive priortoits
takeover of NatWest, and afterthe
acguisition he became Chief Executive
of Retail Drrect which compnsed Tesco
Personal Finance, Virgin One account
and Direct Line financial Services, as
well as the RBS Credit Card business
Norman has also served as Charrman of
the Board of MasterCard Europe

James B Lockhart Il
BA MBA FCT
Non-Executive
Director

Jim has been Vice Chairman of

WL Ross & Co since 2009 where, asa
member of the Investment Committee,
he oversees $9 billion in private equity
investments Priorto his appointment,
Jmwas CEQ and Chawrman of the

US Federal Housing Finance Agency,
and Deputy Commissionerand

Chief Operating Officer of the Social
Security Administration Agency He
also served as Executive Director (CEQ)
ofthe US Pension Beneft Guaranty
Corporation In the private sector im
has held sermor positions in major
investiment banking, insurance and ot
companies
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Virgin Money Executive Team

Jayne-Anne Gadhia
BA MBA FCA

Chief Executive
Officer and

Board Member

Jayne-Anne s a Chartered Accountant
and qualified whilst at Ernst and Young
She then spent 7 years in management
roles 1n Norwich Union (now Aviva)
before becoming one of the three
founders of Virgin Directin 1995
Jayne-Anne launched the market-
leading Virgin One accountin 1998 That
business was acquired by RBS in 2001
after which Jayne-Annewent on to lead a
number of RBS business unitts, ulitmately
jowning the RBS Retat Executive Board
where she was responsible for the
Group’s mortgage business Jayne-Anne
returned to lead Virgin Money in 2007

Finlay Willamson
BCom (Hons) CA
Chief Financial
Officer and
Board Member

Finlay1s a Chartered Accountant and
qualified whilst at Grant Thornton
Hethenspent 18 yearsat RBS in
vartous Group and Divisional finance
roles Finlay served as Head of Group
Corporate Finance dunng the tme

of the RBS takeover of NatWest and,
after the acquisition, became Finance
Director of the RBS Retatl Direct division
which compnsed the Virgin One
account, Direct Line Financial Services
and Tesco Personal Finance In 2006,
Finlay became Finance Director of RBS's
Manufacturing division Finlay joned
Virgin Money in 2009

Marian Watson
BSc {Hons) CA
Chief Risk Officer

Manan s a Chartered Accountant and
qualified whilst at Ernst and Young She
Jowned the Britannia Building Soctety
where she was Internal Audit Manager,
before spending 4 years at the Britannic
Group where she was Head of Group
Audit and then Head of Group Risk
Marnan jotned RBS in 2004 and served
as the Risk Birector of the Group's
consumer finance businesses and of its
mortgage business and then of Tesco
Personal Finance Manan joinedVirgin
Moneyin 2007

Pete Ball
Product and
Commercial Director

Pete’s early career was spent at Bank of
Scotland and Marks & Spencer Financal
Services, where he specialised in IT

and project management In 1993, he
moved to MBNA to lead development of
their core business systems and in 1997,
moved to Iceland Foods before, in 2001,
becoming Regionat Managing Director
of Valtech, an e-commerce business
Pete returned to MBNA 1n 2003 and
served as Director of Partnerships,
leading therr affinity card business He
joned Virgin Moneyin 2010

Mark Parker
Chief Operating
Officer

Mark's early career allowed hum to gain
experience in IT and Qperations before
he took on his first IT Director roles at
Brtish Sugar and then at PepsiCo’s
snack foods bustness, Frito-lay fn 2000,

- Mark joined the HBOS Group, now part
of Lloyds Banking Group, as Group
Services Director and Chief Information
Officer, and then became Managing
Director of Intelligent Finance Mark
was then Chief Operating OFficer at
Northern Rock and joined Virgin Money
injanuary 2012

Brian Brodie mBaA
Customer and
Distnbution Director

Brian has over 30 years of expenence
in banking He spent his early career at
Bank of Scotland where he was Sales
Director for the branch channel before
becoming Regionat Sales Manager for
HBOS In 2001, Brian moved to RBS
where he became a Regional Managing
Director, Director of Mortgage
Operations and then Director of Retail
Service Operations, responsible for
7,800 staff across 17 operational
centres In 2008 he joined inancial
outsourcer, HML, as Chief Executive
Officer He joined Virgin Money in 2011

Matt Elliott ma MSc CiPD
| HR Director

Matt’s early careerwas at RBS, where he
worked on HR pohicy and employment
1ssues, before working onthe HR
transformation programme following
the acquisition of NatWest Matt then
held semior HR roles in several operating
businesses including the Consumer
Finance dwision and Tesco Personal
Finance In 2007, Matt moved to BP

as Senior Manager for Corporate and
Functions before becoming HR Vice
President for BP in North Africain 2010
He joined Virgin Moneyin 2011

Stephen Pearson LB
General Counsel and
Company Secretary

Stephen qualifed as a lawyerin 1985
and has nearly 30 years' expernence n
both private practice and corporations
He spent hus early career at Dorman
Jeffrey (now Dundas and Wilson)

before moving to Linktaters where he
specialised in commeraal kitigation and
msolvency He then moved to Travers
Smuth as a partner where he specialised
in banking hitigation and insolvency He
joined RBS 1n 2001 as Head of Litigation
before moving to the role of General
Counsel, Specialist Services Stephen
jotned Virgin Moneyin 2010
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Group Performance

Combined business results

Key highhights

Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited completed the acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2012 These key hughlights
show the results of the combined business in 2012, and to allow companison, the resutts that would have been achieved 1n
2011 had Virgin Money Holdings (UK} Limited completed the acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2011

» During 2012, we grew our mortgage book by £2 7 bullion This included the purchase of a mortgage portfolio of
€466 4 million from Northern Rock (Asset Management) plc

» Dunng 2012, we grew our retail deposits by £1 8 bilhon We also made two 1ssues of residential mortgage-backed
secunties fora total of £1 7 bilhion

> We expanded our net interest margin from 0 35%1n 2011 to 0 54% 10 2012

> We increased our net interest income from £69 2 milllonin 2011 to €105 3 milhion in 2012, and our total income from
£198 7 mdiionin 2011 to €222 9 mdhienin 2012

> We reduced our operating expenses from £252 9 million in 2011 to £228 3 million in 2012
> The charge Forimpaurments declined from €4 9 mdlion in 2011 to £3 G million tn 2012

> We reduced the loss before tax of the combined business, before exceptional items, from £59 1 mittion in 2011 to
£8 4 milhon n 2012

> Exceptionatlitems added £82 6 mullion to profits in 2011 and £159 O million 1in 2012 In 2012, the largest excephtional item
was a negative goodw!l credit of €139 1 million, ansing from the acquisition of Northern Rock ple

¥ Including these exceptional items, the statutory profit of the combined business reached £150 6 mulhionn 2012
> Attheend of 2012, our core Tier 1 capital ratio was 16 4% and our Tier 1 caputal ratio was 19 9%

> At theend of 2012, ocurliguidity position rematned strong, and comfortably above our regulatory requirements
> During 2012, the integration of Northern Rock ple (now known as Virgin Money plc) was completed successfully

> Afterthe end of the year, on 18 January 2013, we completed the acquisition from MBNA of a £1 04 billion portfolio of
Virgtn credit cards for a consideration of £1 02 billion Details can be found in note 44 to the accounts

Virgin Money Holdings {UK) Limited (“the Company™ or “Parent Company”), 1s a company registered in England and Wales It
1s the parent company of the Virgin Money (“VYM”) group of companies (“Virgin Money Group” or “Group”)
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Group Performance
Combined business results

Note 2012 2011
Em £m
Combined business results summary
Net interest income 1053 69 2
| Otherincome 1176 1295
Total income 2229 1987
Operating expenses (228 3) (252 9)
I Impawment a0 {49
Loss before tax - combined business 84 (59 1)
Reconciliation of combined businesses loss
before tax ko statutory profit before tax
| Loss hefore tax - combined business (8 4) (391
integration costs a 87) {22
Negative goodwill credit b 1391 -
| Farr value unwind and acquisition related adjustments c 275 -
| Contingent consideration d 130 -
‘ Restructuring costs e (08) (12 6)
Proceeds from credit card debt sale - 203
Gains on sale of investment securities F - 635
Deal costs g (120) (16
Netimpact of services provided to Northern Rock {Asset Management} pic {"NRAM")
and Bradford & Bingtey plc (“B&B™) 16 37
Profit of disposal group see note 14 03 -
Adjustment for 2011 statutory loss before taxation of Northern Rock plc b - 259
Profit before tax - statutory [ 1506 235

Basts For the preparation of the combined business resulits

In order to provide results for 2011 and 2012 that are comparable and better present the underlying business performance, the results of
the Group are presented on a ‘combined business’ basts and non-recurring items are included as exceptional items

The key principles adopted in the preparation of the combined business results are described below

In order to reflect the acquisttion of Northern Rock pic on 1 January 2012, the following adjustments have been made to the Group's results

¥ the 2011 results include the results of Northern Rock pic as if it had been acquired on 1 January 2011

3 the unwind of acquisition-related fair value adjustments, which i1s explained in note (c) on page 12, has been included as an exceptional
item 1n 2012, but has not been backdated to 2011

| > the negative goodwill credit on the acquisition of Northern Rock plc and the amortisation of purchased intangible assets have been
included as exceptional items in 2012

in order to show the underlying performance of the combined business, the Following items which are not refated to the acquisition of
Northern Rock plc, have also been included as exceptional items

' ¥integration costs
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Group Performance

Combined business results

Notes to the combined business results
a integration costs

The costs of integrating Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited and Northern Rock plc amounted to £8 7 muillion in 2012, after
€2 2 mulliornin 2011 The costs relate principally to the “rebrand” of Northern Rock pic to Virgin Money plc

b Negative goodwill credit

Following completion of its acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2012, Virgin Money Holdings (UK} Limited
recognised an accounting credit of £139 1 million, after fair value adjustments of €23 3 mulion, in respect of negative
goodwill This was because when Vuirgin Money Hotdings (UK} Limited acquired Northern Rock plc, the amount of the
consideration paid was less than the accounting value (‘fair value’) of the net assets acquired, reftecting the depressed value
of banks in general, with many of them trading well below their accounting values, and the fact that the business was loss
making

¢ Fair value unwind and acquisition related adjustments

After completing its acquisition of Northern Rock plc, Virgin Money Holdings (UK} Limited was required under accounting
standards to review the assets and liabilittes acquured and recognise their current accounting value (fair value) Due to
changes in the economic environment since some of the assets and habilities were written to the balance sheet, including
low economic growth and the continuation of a low interest rate environment, Fair value adjustments were made

Mortgage assets were adjusted downwards by £59 7 million, and deposit habilities were adjusted downwards by

£28 9 million Other Fair value movements of £7 5 mulion were made, resulting 1n an overall reduction in net assets of

€23 3 mullion, (£32 7 million before tax) Detail of the assessment of fair value adjustments is given in note 1 31 {x1} and

more detail of the adjustment s found in note 21 Under accounting rules, this fair value adjustment will unwind over the
expected behavioural itfe of the assets and liabilities As a result, the 2012 results include a fair value unwind, as well as other
acquisition related adjustments, of £27 5 mullion before tax

d Contingent consideration

As a result of the acquisition of Northern Rock ple on 1 January 2012, a contingent consideration of up to £80 mullion s
payable to HM Treasury upon a future profitable IPO or sale of the business between 2012 and 2016 The amount payable
varies on a shiding scale depending on the date of completion of any PO or sale within the time window The consideration
payable starts at £80 million 1n 2012 and falls to £50 milion in 2016 and nil the year after In accordance with accounting
standards the liability has been measured throughout the period since acquisition and is largely influenced by the macro-
economic environment both in the UK and wider euro-zone region As the date to crystallise the 2012 liability of £80
million has now passed the estimate has been updated to reflect both this and continued low growth 1n the UK economy
Accordingly the estimate of the liability has reduced by £13 million to €5 million at the end of the year

e Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs relate pnmarily to the costs of relocating key cotleagues to our operational headquarters in Newcastle
The 2011 Agure comprises redundancy costs due to the restructure of the business

f Gain on szle of Investment secursties

In 2011, Northern Rock ple realised gains of £63 5 mullion by selling its portfolio of UK Government secunities ('gilts’) which
had risen in value because of the fall in UK interest rates While this gain was included, as an exceptional itemn, in the 2011
accounts of Northern Rock plc, the £63 5 mullion was transferred to HM Treasury as part of the acquisition of Northern Rock
plc by Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited
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Combined business results .

g Deal costs -

Deal costs assoctated with the acquisition of Northern Rock ple by Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Luimited and costs relating

to the acquisitton of a credit card portfolio from MBNA amounted to £13 0 million in 2012 The principal elements of these
deal costsinclude €5 2 million of stamp duty costs relating to the acquisition of Northern Rock plc and £6 3 million of costs
relating to the acquisition of the credit card portfolic from MBNA Deal costs of £16 million were incurred in retation to the
acquisition of Northern Rock plc in 2011

h Adjustment for 2011 statutory loss before taxation of Northern Rock ple

The 2011 loss before taxation of Northern Rock ple 1s added back to reconcile the profit before tax on a statutory basis to the
2011 financial statements of Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited

I Profit before tax — statutory

The £23 5 mullon profit For 2011 s for Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited only and does not include Northern Rock plc
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Corporate Governance Report

Governance Structure

Since the acquisition of Northern Rock ple (now Virgin Money plc) on 1 January 2012, the Company’s Board structure and
corporate governance have been regulated principally in accordance with the terms of a shareholders’ agreement (the
“Shareholders’ Agreement”) agreed between the Company and certain majority shareholders in accordance with the
Shareholders' Agreement, the Company operates a corporate governance structure which voluntarily takes into account
the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) so far as practicable Only publicly traded and listed
companies are required to report on how they have applied the main principles of the Code However, as the Code sets out
best corporate governance practices, the Company adheres to it as far as possible

The Board

in 2012, the Board comprised Sir David Clementi (Chairman and Chair of the Nomination Committee), Colin Keogh
(Independent Non-Executive Director — Chair of the Risk Committee and Remuneration Committee), Norman McLuskie
{independent Non-Executive Director — Chair of the Balance Sheet Committee and Aucit Committee), Gordon McCallum
{Non-Executive Director and Virgin shareholder representative), James Lockhart [l (Non-Executive Director and WL Ross

& Co LLC shareholder representative), Patrick McCall {Non-Executwve Director and Virgin shareholder representative),
Jayne-Anne Gadhia (Executive Director — Chief Executive Officer) and Finlay Willamson (Executive Director — Chief Financial
Officer)

In accordance with the Shareholders’ Agreement, there are certain matters reserved for the Board to determuine and other
matters for the Company shareholders to determine

Induction and Training

It is the Group's policy that every Director should receive appropnate training when appotnted to the Board, and
subsequently as necessary The Group’s induction process 1s designed to ensure that every new Director understands theur
respansibilities as a Director of the Company The High Level Controls Manual supports this process The process also
enables Directors to bulld an understanding of the Group, its bustness and the market in which t operates




Virgin Money Group Annual Report 2012 | 15

Corporate Governance Report

Board Committees

In accordance with best practice outlined in the Code, various powers and authorities have been delegated to Committees of
the Board The Board currently operates the following main Committees

> Audit Committee

> Risk Committee

> Balance Sheet Commuttee
?» Nomination Committee

> Remuneration Committee
> Strategy Committee

The Chairman and membership of each Committee is set out below Each Commuttee has detaled Terms of Reference
clearly setting out tts remit and authonty The Terms of Reference are regularly reviewed by the Board and any amendments
are recommended by the respective Committees for approval by the Board

The following paragraphs set out details of the Committees and the particular work that they undertake

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprnises Norman McLuskie (Chairman) and Colin Keogh

The Audit Committee considers and, where appropriate, advises the Board on all matters relating to regulatory and
accounting requirements that affect the Group, and has delegated authority for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal controls It reports to the Board on both financial and non-fAnancial controls and monitors the integrity of
the financial statements of the Group and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial performance As part
of its remit it oversees the adequacy, secunty, \independence and appropnateness of the whistle-blowing arrangements

An important aspect of its role is to ensure that an objective and professional relationship s maintained with the external
auditors The Audit Committee has responsibiitty for recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors

The Audit Committee reviews the scope and results of the annual external audit, its cost effectiveness and the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors it also reviews the nature and extent of any nen-audit services
provided by the external auditors The external auditors can attend all meetings of the Audit Committee, have direct access
to the Committee and its Chairman at all imes and are invited at least annually to meet with the Commuttee in the absence
of Management

The Head of Internal Audit provides further assurance that the signtficant risks identified by the bustness are properly
managed through attendance at key Committees and delivery of the nsk based audit plan The Head of Internal Audtt also
has direct access to the Audit Committee and its Chairman The Committee reqularly recewves reports of revtews conducted
throughout the Group by the Internal Audit function
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Risk Committee
The Risk Committee currently comprises Colin Keogh (Chairman), Norman Mcluskie and intay Wilhamson

The main role of the Risk Committee 1s to recommend to the Board the appropriate risk appetite for the Group and then to
review on behalf of the Board

Q] the key risks inherent in the business
{u1) the systems of control that are necessary to manage such risks within the agreed risk appetite hmits
{tn) to presentits Andings to the Board

This responsibility requires the Risk Committee to keep under review the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
frameworks and systems of internatl contral (which include financial, operational, compliance and nsk management
controls), and to foster a culture that emphasises and demaonstrates the benefits of a nsk-based approach to internal
control and management of the Group The Risk Committee Fulfils this remut by reinforcing Management's risk management
awareness and making appropriate recommendations to the Board on all significant matters relating to the Group’s nisk
appetite, strategy and policies It 1s also responsible For considering the current and prospective macroeconomic and
financial environment

Other responsibilities of the Risk Cornmittee include keeping under review the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
infrastructure This involves an assessment of risk management procedures (for the identifcation, measurement and
control of key risk exposures) in accordance with changes in the operating environment it1s also pnmarily responsible

For considering any major findings of the FSA and Management’s response to any nsk management review undertaken by
Internal Audit or the external auditors

The Risk Committee is responsible for approving the annual risk assurance plan It recewves regular updates from the Chief
Risk Officer on progress with the plan and significant 1ssues uncovered To assist the Board in discharging its respensibilities
for the setting of risk policy, the Risk Committee penodically reviews the Group’s credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity nsk
and operational risk exposures in relation to the Board approved risic appetite and the Group’s capital adeguacy

As part of the i/mplementation of the International Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards Revised
Framework (commonty known as Basel Il), the Risk Committee has responsibility for monitoring the performance of

the relevant company’s Basel credit rating systems and reviewing reports prepared by the Group's Basel designated
Committees

The Risk Committee also ensures that the public disclosure of information regarding the Group’s nsk management policies
and key risk exposures 1s in accordance with statutory requirements and financial reporting standards The Committee also
considers the reports made by the Money Laundering Reporting Officer
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Balance Sheet Committee

The Balance Sheet Committee currently comprises Norman Mciuskie (Chawrman), Colin Keogh, Sir David Clementi and
Finlay Williamson

The Balance Sheet Committee reviews and monitors, on behalf of the Board, the Group's balance sheet financial exposures
and advises and makes recommendations to the Board on the management of the balance sheet, particularly with respect
to hquidity adequacy, capital management and interest rate risk

The Board provides defined control parameters within which the Balance Sheet Committee ensures proper oversight of the
Group’s net interest incorme and its structural exposure to movements in market rates and other changes in the external
environment

The Balance Sheet Committee 1s responsible for reviewing information on the Group's net interest margin performance and
for overseeing the transfer charging of capital, funding, hquidity and nsk costs in order to optimise value taking into account
interest rate forecasts

With regard to capital management, the Balance Sheet Committee 1s required to monitor, review and make
recommendations concerming the quality of the capital base and the fForecast capital surplus and consider the projected
capttal resources In particular, the Balance Sheet Committee is responsible for considening any proposed dividend
distribution with reference to the Group dividend policy and ensuring that there 15 an ongoing robust capital base

The Batance Sheet Commuttee has a number of responsibilities in managing the Group's iquidity This involves approving
the strategic funding and hiquidity plan, ensuring cash and treasury assets are held with approved counterparties, reviewing
the Market Conduct Source Book and proposing capital, hquidity and interest rate nisk stress scenarios Managing the
Group’s hgudity also requires the Balance Sheet Commuttee to produce aggregate regional and global stress tests and
approve the transfer pricing framework For funding and liquidity in order to ensure a risk adjusted return framewark

The Batance Sheet Committee 15 alsc accountable for momtoring and reviewing the effectiveness of resourcing of the
Treasury function This involves approving as appropriate the Treasury orgamisation structure for the management of asset
and hability risks, and an oversight of the work and reports of the Asset and Liabihty Commuittee

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Sir David Clementi (Chairman), Colin Keogh, Narman McLuskie,
Gordon Mc¢Callum and James Lockhart 11l

The purpose of the Nomination Committee s to develop and maintain a formal, ngorous and transparent procedure for
making appointments and re-appointments to the Group Campany Boards

Subject to compliance with the requirements of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Committee monitors and reviews the
membership of, and succession to, the Board of Directors and the Committee makes recornmendations to the Group
Company Board in this regard One of its functions is to identify potential Executive and Non-Executive Directors taking into
account the requirements for members of the Board to have an appropnate range of skills and expenence
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Commuttee currently comprises Colin Keogh (Chawrman), Noerman McLuskie and Sir David Clementi

Subject to comphance with the requirements of the Shareholders’ Agreement, the Commuttee 1s responsible for considering
and adwising the Board on the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and the Chawrman, and for determining therwr
remuneration packages The Remuneration Committee also develops and maintains formal and transparent procedures for
aremuneration framework, and reviews bonus and other reward programmes (n order to ensure they support effective nsk
management In carrying out tts Function, the Remuneration Committee has due regard to the FSA's Remuneration Code and
other relevant requirements

In discharging its responsibilities, the Remuneration Committee can take professional advice from within and outside the
Group

In 2012, the Executive Directors of the Company were remunerated by Virgin Money Management Services Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company and the Company determined the remuneration policy for the Non-Executive Directors, within
the limits set out in the Shareholders” Agreement The Remuneration Committee also determines the level of remuneration
of the Group Company’s Executive Committee (compnising management at the level immediately below the Board) and has
an oversight role of the Remuneration Policy of the Group as it applies to all employees

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee currently campnises Sir David Clementi (Chairman), Colin Keogh, Norman McLuskie,
James Lockhart, Gerdon McCallum and Jayne-Anne Gadhia

The Committee considers and, where appropnate, advises the Board on all matters relating to strategic 1ssues for the Group,
within the parameters agreed by the Board from time to time, including changes to the Group's retail-focused banking
strategy, potential capital raising, potential acquisitions and disposals, discussions with regulators and rating agencies and
ivolvernent in the wider Virgin Group’s international strategy and assignments

The Committee meets at such times as its Chairman deterrmines

Executive Committee

The Board delegates authority to the Executive Committee to oversee the prudent day to day management of the
Company’s affairs

The Executive Commiuttee is led by Jayne-Anne Gadhia (Chief Executive Officer) and compnises of members of the Virgin
Money Executive Team (VMET) There s a range of Executive sub-Committees which cover all the key aspects of the
Group’s business

Stephen Pearson
Company Secretary
20 March 2013
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Directors’ Report

For the year ended 31 December 2012

The Pirectors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the Virgin Money Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 i

Principal Activities

The pnincipal actvity of Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited and its subsidiaries ts the provision of retail banking services to
UK consumers

Virgin Money offers a broad range of products to customers across five key categories
¥ Savings

> Mortgages

» Cards

¥ Insurance

> Investments

Virgin Maney operates through a nationwide network of 75 Stores and 3 Lounges, and also distributes products online, by
post and telephone and through corporate partners It also operates Virgin Money Giving, a not-for-profit online fundraising
website designed to help peopie to raise more money For charty

Review of Business and Future Developments

The Group’s performance in 2012 1s outlined in the Chief Executive’s Review The underlying performance of the Group,
allowing for its acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2012 and for exceptional items in 2011 and 2012, 1s set out in
the Combined Business Results section on page 10

Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators reviewed by Management to momtor the business include gross mortgage lending, mortgage
balances, customer deposit balances and funds under management These are shown 1n the table below

2012 2017
Gross mortgage lending (Ebn) 49 -
Mortgage balances (Em) 16,761 1 176
Customer deposit balances {Em) 18,0067 1107
Funds under management (£bn) 26 24
Total assets (Em) 21,8314 9803
Statutory profit before tax (Em) 1506 235

* Based on 2011 statutory accounts, not on a combined business basis

Non-fnancial KPIs are disciosed in the Highlhights for 2012 section on the inside cover of this report
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group 15 exposed to a variety of nsks through its normal operations The following paragraphs explain the most
significant risks and how they are managed More detail s disclosed in note 38 to the accounts

> Credit nisk the risk that a borrower or counterparty Fails ko pay the interest, or to repay the capital, on a loan or other
financial instrument All lending 1s carefully underwntten, and the performance of individual loans 1s monitored on an
ongoing basts by Management and reparted regularly to the Board

» Market nsk the risk that the value of, or net income artsing from, the Group's assets and labilities changes as a result of
changes to interest rates or exchange rates Market risk 1s managed and monitored on an ongoing basis agawnst Board
approved nisk appetite and policy

? Liquidity nisk the risk that the Group 1s unable to meet its obligakions as they Fall due The Group’s position 1s monitored by
Management on a daily basis and liguidity is supported by intercompany facilities (f required The Group’s iquidity position
ts reqularly reported to the Board

» Operahienal risk. the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events A range of indicators covering the Group’s operations is reviewed by Management and the Board regularly
throughout the year All key business processes are subject to periodic reviews by the Group’s Risk and Internal Audit teams
to ensure that appropriate controls are in place and operating effectively

¥ Legal nisk: the risk of legal sanction, material financial loss or loss of reputation that the Group may suffer as a result of its
Faiture to comply with the law, inadequately document its contractual arrangements or inadequately assess and implement
changes required by forthcomung legislation oremerging case faw The Virgin Money Group legal department supports the
Group in meeting its contractual obligations and assessing legal developments

> Regulatory nisk the risk that the Group fails to comply with its regulatory requirements with the potential that the Group
* treats customers unfarrly, potentially exposing them to financial or other detriment
= 15 subject to legal or regulatory sanction
* suffers reputational damage
* 15 used forthe purposes of financial cnime

The Virgin Money Group Risk and Compliance teams support the Group to develop policies, deliver training and perform
monitoring checks to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements

Dwidends

No divtdends were declared and paid in the year {2011 £Nu)
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Directors

The current compasitton of the Board of Directors together with detatls of appointments and retirements up to the date of
this report is as follows

Executive Non-Executive

Jayne-Anne Gadhia Sir David Clementi

Finlay Willamson Colin Keogh

Company Secretary James Lockhart

Jasan Fitzpatrnck Patrick McCall (appointed 26 June 2012)
(resigned 23 May 2012) Gordon McCaltum

Stephen Pearson Norman MclLuskie

(appownted 23 May 2012)

As at the date of this report, specific indemmities are in force under which the Company has agreed to indemmfy each Director
indmdually, to the extent permitted by law and the Company's articles of association, in respect of all losses arising out of, or
in connection with, the execulion of thewr powers, duties and responsibihities, as directors of the Company

The Company has also arranged Director’s and Officer’s Insurance on behalf of the Directors in accordance wath the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 - -

Employees

The Group believes that colleagues are fundamental to our success and that capitahsing on what s umque about individuals
and drawing on their different perspectives and experiences will add value to the way the Group does business

Using fair, objective and innovative employment practices, the Group's aim 1s to ensure that
¥ all colleagues and potential colleagues are treated fairly and with dignity and respect at all bimes

¥ all colleagues have the right ta be free from harassment, victimusation and bullying of any descripbion, ar any other form
of unwanted behaviour, whether based on age, colour of skin, disability, ethric origin/race, gender/trans-gender status,
marital/civil partnership status, sexual cnentation, relgion or belief

*» all colteagues have an equal opportunity to achieve their potential, irrespective of any defining Feature that may give rise to
unfair discrimination

Shares

Detauls of the structure of the Company’s authonised and issued share capital as at the year end, as well as any movements in
and changes to the authonsed and 1ssued share capital during the year, are provided in note 32 to the accounts
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The ordinary shareholder base of the Company 1s set out in the table below

Number of ordinary % of voting

shares held class held

Virgin Financial Services UK Haldings Limited 18,028,552 46 53
WL Ross & Co LLC! 17,392,752 44 90
Stanhope Investments 2,285,545 590
Directors and Management 538,700 139
Employee Benefit Trust 268,625 069
Other 228,555 059
Total 100 00

t WL Ross & Co LLC shareholdings are held by WLR IVVM LLC and WIR IVVMII LLC

Details of the Employee Share Schemes are provided in note 7

Further details regarding the rights and cbligations attaching to the current share classes are contatned in the Company’s
Articles of Association

Creditor Payment Policy

The Group’s pelicy in refation to all of its supphers is to agree the terms of payment at the outset of our relationship The
average creditor payment period at 31 December 2012 was 30 days

Going Concern

The Directors are satisfied at the ime of approval of the financial statements that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future Forthis reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the accounts The Group's use of the going concern basis for the preparation of the accounts 1s discussed in note 1

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible For preparing the Annual Report and the group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company Law requires the Directors to prepare group and parent cornpany financial statements for each financial year Under

that {aw the Directors have elected to prepare the group and the parent company financial statements in accordance with
tnternational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the EU and applicable taw
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Under Company Law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfed that they give a true
and fairview of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period In preparing
each of the group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
> state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

> prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the group and the
parent company wtll continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the financial position of the parent company
and enable them to ensure that its financtal Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have a general

responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of the group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irrequlanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the

company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
From legislabion in other jurisdictions

Auditor and Disclosure of Information to the Auditor

So far as every Director 1s aware at the date of this report, there 15 no relevant audit information needed in preparation of the
auditor’s report of which the auditor 1s not aware The Directors have taken the steps they need to have taken as Directors to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor s also aware of that information

Under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006, KPMG LLP wifl be deemed to have been reappointed as auditor 28 days
after these financial statements were sent to members or 28 days after the latest date prescribed for filing the accounts with
the registrar, whichever s earlier

This report was approved by the Board on 20 March 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Jayne-Anne Gadhia

Chief Executive Officer \ O\.dd/\/\a

Registered No 03087587
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Virgin Money Holdings {UK) Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
set out on pages 26 to 101 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in thewr preparation 1s applicable law
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applhied in accordance with the provisiens of the Compames Act 2006

The report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members thase matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the optnions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditor

As explained more Fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 22, the Directors are responsible for

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farrview Qur responsibility 1s to
audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards
For Auditors

Scope of the Audtit of the Financial Statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements s provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinion the financial statements

> gwve a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent cornpany’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of the
Group’s profit for the year then ended

> the Group’s financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

» the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the informatiwon gwven in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report ta you if,
N our opINon

¥ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate For our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us

> the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns
¥ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made

» we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Ml ek

Michael Peck (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Sguare
London

E145GL

20 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Note 2012 201
£m £m
Interest income 2 6333 38
Interest expense 3 (498 0) 21
Net interest income 1353 17
fFee and commission iIncome 175 -
Fee and commission expense (17 6) -
Other operating income 4 1101 1362
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 01 -
Gains on sale of investment securities 18 169 -
Fair value gains on financial instruments o8 -
Total other income 127 8 136 2
Total mcome 2631 1379
Administrative expenses (232 2) (90 5)
Depreciation and amortisation 5,23,24 (16 7) (79
Acquisition costs 5 (130) (16 Q)
Total operating expenses 5 (261 9) (114 4)
impairment losses on loans and advances 9 (30) -
Contingent consideration 36 130 -
Negative goodwill credit 21 1391 -
Profit for the year by the disposal group 03 -
Profit before taxation 1506 235
Taxation 10 67 8 (105)
Profit for the year attnbutable to owners 218 4 130
Other comprehensive income
Net movement 1n available For sale reserve 35 118 -
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve 35 (113) -
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners 2189 130

The notes on pages 33 to 101 form an integral part of these Ainancial statements
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Note 2012 2011
€m £Em

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 13 1,604 5 628
Disposal group assets held for sate 14 796 -
Loans and advances to banks 15 1,3102 8018
Loans and advances to customers 16 16,761 1 176
Farr value adjustments of portfolio hedging 16 1330 -
Investment securities 8 1,5343 46
Dervative inancial instruments 20 1610 09
Intangible assets 23 348 190
Property, plant and equipment 24 772 108
Prepayments and accrued income 187 53
Deferred taxation 26 798 22
Other assets 25 372 553
Total assets 21,8314 9803
Liablities
Deposits by banks 27 34 2538
Customer accounts 28 18,006 7 1107
Disposal group habities held for sale 14 543 -
Derwvative financial instruments 20 2856 -
Debt securities in1ssue 17 2,266 6 -
Taxation - 120
Accruals and deferred income 30 2422 449
Prowisions for labilities and charges 3 64 -
Other habiities 29 211 4 236
Total habilities 21,076 6 4450
Equity
Share caputal 32 - -
Share premwm 33 509 2 5092
Own shares 34 (6 2) (22)
Otherreserves 35 03 (46)
Retained earnings 2315 329
Total equity 7548 5353
Total habihities and equity 21,8314 9803

The notes on pages 33 to 101 form an integral part of these financial statements
The financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Board and were signed on its behalf on 20 March 2013

Jayne-Anne Gadhia

Chief Executive Officer O\dw
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Share Share Other Own Retained Total
capital premium reserves shares earnings equity
€m €m £m £m £m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2011 - 1345 {02) - 194 1537
Profit for the year - - - - 130 130
Other comprehensive income
Net mavement in available for sale reserve - - - - - -
Net movement in cash flow hedge reserve - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 130 130
Transactions with equity holders, recognised in equity
Issuance of shares - 3747 - - - 3747
Employee benefit trust - - (44) 22 - {6 6)
Share-based payments - - - - 05 05
Balance as at 31 December 2011 - 5092 (4 6) 22) 329 5353
Balance as at 1 January 2012 - 509 2 (46) (2 2) 329 5353
Profit for the year - - - - 218 4 2184
Other comprehensive income
Net movement in avallable for sale reserve - - 118 - - 118
Net movernent in cash flow hedge reserve - - (11 3) - - (113)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 05 - 2184 2189
Transactions with equity holders, recogmsed in equuty
Issuance of shares - - - - - -
Employee benefit trust - - 44 (40) - 04
Share-based payments - - - - 02 0z
Balance as at 31 December 2012 - 509 2 03 62) 2515 7548

Other reserves in 2011 included an amount in relation to put options granted over shares in relation to an Employee Benefit Trust
(see note 34)
The notes on pages 33 to 101 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

Note 2012 2011
£m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit before taxaton 1506 235
Adjusted for
Depreciation and amortisation 167 33
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment 01) -
Gains on investment secunties (16 9) -
Income tax paud (180) (124)
Fawrvalue adjustments on finanaial instruments (139 4) -
Impairment of intangthle assets - 46
Deemed loss on exercise of warrants - 06
Net increase in deferred tax - 12
Net increase 1n share based payment reserve 02 05
Contingent consideration (13 0) -
Negative goodwill credit {139 1) -
Net cash (outfow)/inflow from operating profit before changes in operating assets
and habilities {159 0) 213
Changes in operating assets and habihties
Net increase \n deposits held For regulatory or monetary control purposes 27412 -
Net (iIncrease)/decrease in loans and advances to customers (2,659 8) 33
Net increase in derivative financial instruments payable . - . 207 -
Net decrease in loans and advances to banks 859 3 1627
Net increase in prepayments and accrued income 09 (18)
Net increase/{decrease) in other assels 542 (18
Net (decrease} in provision for Liabilities 4 01)
Net (increase) in deposits from banks (94 8) -
Net increase/{decrease) in customer accounts 1,295 4 {8 8)
Net (increase)/decrease in other habihties (24 5) 98
Net increase tn accruals and deferred income 413 78
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2077 176 1
Net cash (outAow)/inflow from investing activities
Net investment in intangible assets (55) (103)
Net investment in property, plant & equipment (23 6) (95)
Net investment in secunties (3,121 3) -
Proceeds From sale and redemption of investment secunties 28856 750
Movement in disposal of group assets and habilities (9 6) -
Acquisition of Virgin Money plc {825 Q) -
Net cash {outRow}/inflow From investing activities {1,099 4) 552
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from Anancing activities
issuance of ordinary shares - 3639
Loan from banks (253 8) 2538
Sale/{repurchase) of shares by Employee Beneft Trust 06 22)
Net increase 10 debt securities in 1ssue 1,3202 -
Net cash (outAow)/inAow from financing activities 1,067 0 6155
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,0393 8468
Cash and cash equnvalents at 1 January 8571 103
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 2,896 4 8571

The notes on pages 33 to 101 form an integral part of these Ainancal statements
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Company Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2012

Note 2012 2011
£m £m

Assels
Loans and advances to banks 15 171 7728
investment 1 subsidiary undertakings 19 1,118 4 1287
Derwvative financial instruments 20 02 09
Other assets 25 593 568
Prepayments and accrued income 01 108
Deferred tax 26 03 04
Total assets 1,195 4 970 4
Liabihities
Deposits by banks 27 - 2538
Other habilities 29 328 4 1718
Total habiities 3284 425 6
Equity
Share capital 32 - -
Share prermum 33 509 2 509 2
Own shares 34 {62) (22)
Other reserves - (4 4)
Retained earnings 3640 422
Total equity 8670 5448
Total liabilities and equity 1,195 4 970 4

The notes on pages 33 toe 101 form an integral part of these financial statements
The financial statements were approved and authonised For issue by the Board and were signed on its behalf on 20 March 2013

layne-Anne Gadhia
Chief Executive Officer
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

Share Share Other Own Retained Total
capital premium reserves shares earnings equity
£m €m €m Em €m £m
Balance as at 1 January 2011 - 1345 - - 640 198 5
Loss for the year - - - - (22 3) (223)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (223) (22 3)
Transactions with equity holders, recognised in equity
Employee Benefit Trust - - (44) (22) - (66)
Issuance of shares - 3747 - - - 3747
Share-based payments - - - - 05 05
Balance as at 31 December 2011 - 509 2 {4 4) (22) 422 5448
8alance as at 1 January 2012 - 509 2 {(44) (22) 422 5448
Profit for the year - - - - 3216 3216
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 3216 3216
Transactions with equity holders, recognised in equity
Employee Benefit Trust - - 44 40 - 04
Issuance of shares - - - - - -
Share-based payments - - - - 02 02
Balance as at 31 December 2012 - 5092 - (62) 3640 8670

Other reserves in 2011 tnclude an amount in relation to put options granted over shares in relation to an Employee Benefit Trust
{see note 34}
The notes on pages 33 to 101 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Company Cash Flow Statement

Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

Note 2012 2011
Em €m

Net cash (outRow)/inAow From operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxahion 319 4 (28 7)
Adjusted for
Income tax paid 66 27
Unrealised movement on denvatives 07 -
Deemed loss on exercise of warrants - 05
Revaluation of subsicdhary investment 46 -
Contingent consideration (130) -
Gain on sale of subsidiaries (320 3) -
Net cash outflow from operating profits before changes 1n operating assets and habthties 20) (25 5)
Changes in operating assets and hiabilities
Net increase in other assets 04 01
{Increase)/decrease (n amounts due to group undertakings {51 1) 144 4
Net decrease/(increase) in other labilibies 03 03)
Net cash (outAow)/inflow from operating activities {52 4) 118 7
Net cash outAow from investing activities
Investment in subsidary undertakings - (150
Purchase of substdiary undertaking {825 0) (10 9)
Sale of subsidiary undertaking 3300 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities (495 0) (25 9)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Issuance of ordinary shares - 3639
Loan from banks (253 8) 2538
Amounts from group undertakings 495 (36 1)
Repurchase of shares by Employee Benefit Trust 40 (22
Net cash (outflow)/inflow From financing activities (208 3) 5794
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (755 7) 6722
Opening cash and cash equivalents 7728 1006
Closing cash and cash equivalents 12 171 7728

The notes on pages 33 te 101 form an integral part of these inancial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

1.1

1.2

13

14

15

Accounting Policies

Reporting entity
Virgin Money Holdings {UK) Lirmited 1s a company incorporated and registered in England and Wales

Basis of preparation

The Graup and Company financial statements, which should be read in conjunction with the Directors’ Report, have
been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as
adopted by the EU, IFRIC interpretations and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicabte to companies
reporting under [FRS No individual profit and loss account ts presented forthe Company, as permitted by Section 408(4)
of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors have reviewed the strategic plan which shows the financial position, cash fiow, liquidity and capital
forecasts for the Group and all of its subsidiaries The Dwrectors are confident that they show that the Group will have
sufficlent resources to meet its habilities as they fall due Accordingly the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis

Basis of consolidation

In these financial statements Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited 1s referred to as the “Company” The “Group” consists
ofthe Company and all its substdiaries The subsidiaries are histed 1n note 19 The consolidated financial statements
comprise the Ainancial statements of the Group

Entities are regarded as subsidiaries where the Group has the power to govern financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities Inter-company transactions and balances are elminated upon consolidation

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which controlis transFerred to the Group and are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases Uniform accounting policies are applied consistently across the Group

Basis of measurement

The Anancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost canvention as modified by the revaluation
of derwatwve financial instruments and available for sale assets held at fairvalue A summary of the materal Group
accounting policies is set out below

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires Management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptilons that affect the apphcation of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
habilities, income and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumpttons are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recogmised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future penods affected

The accounting pelicies set out below have been applied consistently to all perods presented in these financial
statements

Interest income and expense

Interest iIncome and expense are recognised in the income statement For all instruments measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method

The effective interest rate method calculates the amortised cost of a financial asset or a inancial hability, and allocates
the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate i1s the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or inancial liabiity When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the inancial instrument (For
example prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses The calculabion includes all amounts recelved
or paud by the Group that are an integral part of the overall return, direct iIncremental trarisaction costs related to the
acquisttion or issue of a financial instrument and all other premwms and discounts
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1.7

18

Accounting Policies {continued)

Once a Anancial asset or group of similar inancial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income (s recogrused using the rate of interest used to discount the Future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impatrrment loss

Fees and commissions

Where they are not included in the effective interest rate calculation, fees and commissions are recognised on an
accruals basis when the service has been provided Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are
deferred {together with related incremental direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate
on the loan Insurance commissions are recognised in the period in which they are earned

Other operating income
Other operating income comprises the faw value for services, net of value added tax, rebates and discounts

Income arnsing from credit card co-branding arrangements is reflected within the pre-tax net income of the total card
portfelio and recogrised dally Amounts received over and above the standard mecharmism are recorded as revenue
when 1t 1s considered the performance obligations relating to such amounts have been fulfilied

In 2009, the Company agreed to vary the terms of its existing contract with the credit card partner extending it For a
period of a further 5 years The substance of the transaction is such that the equivalent revenues to which the Company
s entitled during the term of the contract extension are deemed to relate to the entire contract peniod of 10 years As
such, contracted revenues have been spread over a period of 10 years, discounted at a rate equivalent to an appropriate
10 year bond yeld

Other operating tncome from sales of units in managed funds 1s recognised dally based on the average volume of funds
under management

Fees charged to charities for registering with Virgin Money Giving Limited are recognised from the date on which
there is no significant uncertainty as to their collectability The 2% commission charged on donations and event fees
is recognised from the date danations and event fees are transacted on the website Both of these income streams
contnbute towards costs incurred by Virgin Money Gving which s the Group’s not-for-profit subsidiary

Financaial instruments

Financial assets can be classified in the following categories loans and recewvables, available for sale, held to matunty or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Management determines the classification of its Ainancial instruments
atinibal recogmtion The Group measures all of its financial labilities at amortised cost, other than deriwvatives and
those instruments which have been designated as part of a hedging relationship (see below} Regularway purchases and
sales of Anancial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to matunty and avatlable for sale are recognised on the
trade date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

Loans and receivables at amortised cost

The Group's loans and advances to banks and customers are classified as loans and recewvables Loans and recewvables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, whose
recaverability 1s based solely on the credit risk of the customer and where the Group has no intention of trading the loan
Both loans and receivables and financial labilities are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental
transaction costs Subsequent recognition 1s at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
provision forimpairment
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Available For sale inancial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-denvative assels that are either designated as available for sale or are assets
that do not meet the definition of loans and receivables and are not derivatives or assets held at fair value through profit
orloss These are pnincipaily but not exclusively tnvestment secunties intended to be held for an indefinite penod of
time which may be sold in response to a need For kquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices
They are tnitiatly measured at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets and, where these are not available, from valuation techniques including
discounted cash flow models Subsequent measurement 15 at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised

tn other comprehensive income except for impawrment losses and translation differences, which are recognised in the
income statement Upon derecognition of the asset, or where there s objective evidence that the investment security
isimpawed, the cumulative gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are removed from other
comprehensive ncome and recycled to the income statement

Held to matunity financial assets

Held to maturity inancial assets are non-denvative financial assets wath fixed or determinable payments that the
Group has the ability and intention to hold to maturity They are initially measured at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs Subsequent measurement 1s at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
No financial assets were classified as held to maturity durtng either the current or prior year

Financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss

This category consists of denvative financial assets Assets in this category are carried at fairvalue The Fairvalues of
derivative instruments are calculated by discounted cash flow models using yield curves that are based on observable
market data or are based on valuations obtained from counterparties Gains and losses arising from the changes in the
Fair values are recognised in the income statement

The fair values of quoted tnvestments in active markets are based on current bid prices IFthe market for a inancual
asset 15 not active (and for unhisted secunities), the Group establishes fair value using valuation technigues These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techmques commonly used by market participants

Financial habihties

Borrowings, including shares, deposits and debt securities in 1ssue are recogmsed imitially at fair value, being the

Issue proceeds net of premiums, discounts and transaction costs incurred All borrowings are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Amortised cost 1s adjusted for the amortisation of any
premiums, discounts and transacttan costs The amortisation s recogmised n interest expense and similar charges using
the effective interest rate method The Group does not hold any financial lhabilities classified as held for trading

Cffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there 15 a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the labtity simultanecusly
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Accounting Policies {(continued}

Denivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group s authorised to undertake the following types of derivative financial instrument transactions for non-trading
purposes Cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps, equity swaps, interest rate caps, forward rate agreements, options,
foreign exchange contracts and similar instruments

The Group's derwvative activities are entered into for the purpose of matching or ellminating nisk from potential
movements in interest and Foreign exchange rates inherent in the Group's assets, llabilities and positions All derivative
transactions are for economic hedging purposes and so 1t 1s therefore decided at the outset which position the
derwvative will be hedging Denwatives are reviewed regularly for therr effectiveness as hedges and corrective action
taken, \fappropriate Denvatives are measured imbially at Fair value and subsequently remeasured to fair value Farr
vaiues are obtawined from quoted market prices in active markets and, where these are not available, from valuation
technmiques including discounted cash flow models and option pricing models Where denvatives are not designated

as part of a hedging relationship, changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement Where derivatives are
designated within hedging relationships, the treatment of the changes in fair value depends on the nature of the
hedging relationship as explained below

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated 1n this way provided certain critena are met The Group documents
at the inception of the hedge relationship the hink between the hedging instrument and the hedged itermn as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions The Group also documents its
assessment both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis of whether the derivatives used in hedging transactions
are lughly effective in offsetting changes in the fair values or cash flows of hedged items The Group designates certan
derivatives as either

(1} Cash flow hedges
A cash Row hedge 15 used to hedge exposures to vaniability in cash flows, such as vanable rate financial assets and
habihties The effective portion of changes in the derivative Fair value 1s recogmised (in other comprehensive income,
and recycled to the income statement in the penods when the hedged item will affect profit and loss The fair value
gamn or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately in the income statement

{n) Fairvalue hedges
A Fair value hedge 1s used to hedge exposures to variability in the Fair value of financial assets and habitities, such
as fixed rate loans Changes in fair value of denivabtives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the iIncome statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or habihity that
are attributable to the hedged rnisk Ifthe hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment
to the carrying amount of the hedged (tem 1s amortised to the income statement over the period to maturity

If derwatives are not designated as hedges then changes in fair values are recognised immediately in the income
statement

(1) Embedded derwatwes
Certain dervatives are embedded within other non-derwvative host instruments to create a hybnid instrument
Where the economic characteristics and nisks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to the economic
characteristics and risk of the host instrument, and where the hybrid instrument 1s not measured at fairvalue, the
Group separates the embedded derwvative from the host instrument and measures it at fair value with the changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement

Chient money

The Group's unit trust management and investment intermediary subsidiaries admimister money on behalf of some clients
in accordance with the Client Money Rules of the Financial Senices Authority Such monies and the corresponding amounts
due to chients are not shown on the face of the balance sheet as the Group 15 not the beneficial owner
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Accounting Policies (continued}

1.12 Sale and repurchase agreements

113

Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are reclassified in the financial statements as assets pledged
when the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral, the counterparty habihity

ts included in amounts due to other banks, deposits frorm banks, other deposits or deposits due to customers, as
appropriate Securities purchased under agreements to resell {‘reverse repos’} are recorded as loans and advances to
banks or customers as appropriate The difference between sale and repurchase price 1s treated as interest and accrued
over the life of the agreements using the effective interest rate method Secunities lent to counterparties are also
retained in the financial statements

Impairment lasses

The Group assesses its financial assets or groups of financial assets for objective evidence of impairment at each
balance sheet date Anmpairment loss 1s recognised ifand only if there 1s a loss event (or events) that has occurred
after imibial recognition, and on or before the balance sheet date, that has a reliably measurable impact on the estimated
fFuture cash lows of the financial assets or groups of financial assets Losses that are incurred as a result of events
occurring after the balance sheet date are not recognised in these financial statements

Assets held at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impawrment exists individually for Ainancial assets that are
indwidually sigruficant, and individually or collectively For financial assets that are not individually significant Objective
evidence that a financial asset 1s impawred includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about the
following loss events

* significant finanaal difficulty of the 1ssuer or obligor
» abreach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal repayments

» thelender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s Rnancial difficulty, granting to the borrower a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider

* 1t becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
* the disappearance of an active market for that Anancial asset because of financial difficulties

* observable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
assets since the imbial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be (dentified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including

() adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio
(1) national or local economtc conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio

{fthe Group determines that no objective evidence of impawrment exists for an indwvidually assessed financial asset,
whether sigmficant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit nisk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairrment

Assets that are indwvidually assessed and for which an impairment loss 1s or continues to be recogrised are not included
1n a collective assessment of impairment
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Ifthere 1s objective evidence that an tmpairment loss on loans and recetvables has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset carrying amount and the present value of the eshimated future cash
Aows (excluding future credit tosses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an impawrment allowance and the amount
of the loss 1s recognised in the income statement In future periods the unwinding of the discount is recognised within
interest iIncome

When a loan s uncollectible, it s written off agawinst the related provision For loan impairment Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recogrised drectly in the income statement If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurning after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the customer’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairrment loss is reversed by adjusting the impawrment allowance The amount of the reversal 1s recognised in the
Income statement

A specific provision is also made in the case of accounts, which may not currently be \n arrears, where the Group has
exercised forbearance in the conduct of the account The provision 1s based on the propensity of the account to realise a
loss, had forbearance not been shown Normal impatrment procedures are followed, and as 31 December 2012 the value
of such cases of forbearance was not assessed to be material

Available for sale financial assets

The Group's debt secunttes and treasury bills are held as available for sale assets For available For sale financial assets,
the Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset, or group of
financial assets are impaired The amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost
less principal repayments and amortisation and the current Fair value The amount of the impatrment loss is recognised
in the income statement This includes cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income which are recycled from other comprehensive income to the income statement if, in a subsequent penod, the
Fair value of a debt instrument classified as available For sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised tn profit or loss, the impairment loss s reversed through the
tncome statement

Disposal group

Assets and liabilities of a disposal group are classified as held for sale where the carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transactton as opposed to continuing use and they are available for sale in the present
condition This s subject only to the terms that are usual and customary For the sale of such assets and habilities and the
sale being highty probable and expected to complete within one year of being classified as a disposal group The disposal
group 1s measured at the lower of carrying amount and Fair value less costs to seil

Derecognition of inancial assets and liabihites

Derecognibion is the point at which the Group remaves an asset or liability from its balance sheet The Group's policy

is to derecogmse financial assets only when the contractual nght to the cash flows from the financial asset expires

The Group also derecognises financial assets that it transfers to another party provided the transfer of the asset also
transfers the right to recetve the cash flows of the financial asset or where the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership Where the transfer does not result in the Group transferring the right to recewve the cash
flows of the financial assets, but it does resuit in the Group assuming a corresponding abligation to pay the cash flows

to ancther recipient, the inancial assets are also accordingly derecognised The Group derecogruses financial liabilities
only when the obligation specified in the contract s discharged, cancelled or has expired or s transferred to a therd

party
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1 16 Secunitisation transactions

Certain Group companies have tssued debt securities in order to finance spectfic loans and advances to customers Both
the debt secunties in 1ssue and the loans and advances to customers remain on the Group balance sheet within the
appropriate balance sheet headings unless

() afully proportional share of all or of specifically (denttfied cash lows have been transferred to the holders of the
debt securities, in which case that proportion of the assets are derecogmised

(1) substanbally all the risks and rewards associated with the assets have been transferred, in which case the assets are
fully derecogmised

(u) asignificant propertion of the nsks and rewards have been transferred, in which case the assels are recogmsed only
to the extent of the Group’s continuing invalvement

The Group has also entered into self-1ssuance of securitised debt which may be used as collateral for repurchase or
stmifar transactions Investments (n self-issued debt and the equivalent deemed loan, together with the related income,
expense and cash flows, are not recognised in the financial statements

1 17 Debt and equity secunities in 1ssue

issued securities are classified as habilities where the contractual arrangements result in the Group having an ebligation
to deliver either cash or another financial asset to the security holder, or to exchange financiat instruments under
conditions that are potentially unfavourabtle ko the Group Issued securities are classified as equity where they meet the
defintion of equity and confer a residual interest in the Group's assets on the holder of the secunities

Financial habilities are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (see note 39) Equity
instruments are tnitially recogmised at net proceeds, after deducting transaction costs and any related income tax
Appropriabions to holders of equity secunities are deducted from equity, net of any related income tax, as they become
wrrevocably due to the holders of the securities

118 Foreign currency transiation
The Group’s financial statements are presented in sterling, which1s the functional currency of the parent Company
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions Monetary items denomunated in Foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the balance
sheet date Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the restatement and settlement of such transactions are
recognised in the income statement Non-monetary items measured at amortised cost and denorminated in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction Non-monetary iterns measured at fair
value are translated at the exchange rate at the date of valuation Where these are held at fairvalue through the income
statement, exchange differences are reported as part of the fair value gain ortoss

119 Cash and cash equwvalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse balances with less than three months
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and non-restricted balances with central banks

1 20 Taxation
Taxation comprises current tax and deferred tax Current tax and deferred tax are recogmsed in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income

Current tax s based an the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 1n respect of previous years

The Group has adopted the Code of Practice on Taxation 1ssued by HM Revenue and Customs
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1.23

Accounting Policies {continued)

Deferred tax s recognised wn respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred taxis measured at the tax rates that
are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the extent
that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision forimpairment, as
appropriate Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to

its working condition For its intended use Additions and subsequent expenditure are included in the assel’s carrying
value or are recognised as a separate asset only when they improve the expected future economic benefits to be derwved
from the asset All otherrepairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement in the periad in which they are
incurred

Depreciation 1s provided using the straight ine method to allocate costs less residual vatues over estimated useful lives,
as follows

Freehold property 50-100 years

Leasehold property Unexpired penod of the lease
Plant and leasehold tmprovements 5-30years

Computer equipment 3-5years

Office equipment 3-10years

Motorvehicles 4 years

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at each balance sheet date Where
the cost of freehold land can be identified separately from buildings, the land s not depreciated Property, plant and
equipment are subject to impairment testing, If deemed appropriate

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are assessed for indications of impairment at each balance sheet
date, or more frequently where required by events or changes in circumstances If indications of impawrment are found,
these assets are subject to an impairment review The impairment review compares the carrying value of the assets
with their recoverable amounts, which are defined as the higher of the Fair value less costs to sell and theirvalue in use
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount at which the asset could be sold in a binding agreement in an arm’s length
transaction Value in use s calculated as the discounted cash flows generated as a result of the asset’s continued use
including those generated by its ultimate disposal, discounted at a market rate of interest on a pre-tax basis

Where impairments are indicated, the carrying values of fixed assets are written down by the amount of the impairment
and the charge 1s recognised tn the income statement in the period in which it eccurs A previcusly recognised
impairment charge on a fixed asset may be reversed in Full or in part where a change in circumstances leads to a change
in the estimates used to determine its recoverable amount The carrying value of the fixed asset will only be increased to
the carrying value at which it would have been held had the impairment not been recognised

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets purchased separately from a business combination are capitalised at their cost and amortised from the
date from which they become available for use over their useful econormic life which 1s generally 3-5 years Intangible assets
acquired as part of an acquisition are capitalised at their Fair value where this can be measured reliably in accordance with
IFRS 10, purchased goodwill (representing the excess of the fair value of the consideration given over the fair value of the
separable net assets acquired) ansing on business combinations m respect of acquisitions since 1 January 1998 1s capitalised
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Positive goodwill 1s held on the balance sheet and tested for imparrment annually

Computer software

Costs incurred 1n acquiring and developing computer software For internal use are capitalised as intangible assets where
the software leads to the creation of an identtfiable non-monetary asset and it 1s probable that the expected Future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group from its use for a period of over one year The
software s classified as an intangible asset where it I1s not an integral part of the related hardware and amortised over its
estimated useful ife on a straight line basis which is generally 3 to 5 years

Costs associated with maintaiming software are expensed as they are incurred

1 24 Leases

IFthe lease agreement, in which the Group 15 a lessee, transfers the rnisks and rewards of the asset, the lease 1s recorded
as a finance lease and the related asset i1s capitalised At nception, the asset 1s recorded at the lower of the present value
of the minimum lease payments or fair value and ts depreciated over the estimated useful Life The lease obligations are
recorded as borrowings

IFthe lease does not transfer the risks and rewards of the asset, the lease is recorded as an operating lease

QOperating lease payments are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the lease term unless a
different systematic basis 1s more appropnate Where an operating lease 1s terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor in compensation 1s charged to the income statement in the
period in which termination is made

1 25 Provisions

126

127

Provisions are recogmsed for present obligations arising from past events where it 1s more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations and they can be reliably estimated

Contingent liabtlities are possible obhigations whose existence depends upon the outcome of uncertain Future events
or are present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be reliably measured Contingent
habilities are not recogrised in the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment Investments in subsidiaries are included

in the Company’s balance sheet, comprising equity investments in subsidiary entities These are carried at cost less
impairment provisions At each reporting date an assessment is undertaken to determine ifthere 1s any indication of
impatrment This assessment can include reviewing factors such as the solvency, profitabtlity and cash flows generated
by the subsidary IFthere 1s an indication of impairment, an estimate of the recoverable amount ts made IFthe carrying
value exceeds the recoverable amount then a provision for impairment 1s made to reduce the carrying value to the
recoverable amount

Share capital

The Ainancial instruments 1ssued by the Company are treated as equity (1 e Forming part of shareholders’ funds) oniy to
the extent that they meet the following two conditions

(a) theyinclude no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange
financial assets or financial tiabilities wath another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the
Company

{b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, it1s either a non-derivative
that includes no obligation to deliver a vartable number of the Company’s own equity instruments or s a derwvative
that will be settled by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of
1Its own equity instruments
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1.28

129

130

Accounting Policies (continued)
To the extent that this defimition 1s not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial hability

Share 1ssue costs
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds

Dividends
Dwvidends are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders or patd

Employee Benefit Trust

Purchases of shares by the Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT”) are accounted for as a purchase of own shares by the
Company and are debited to the own shares reserve at cost Put options granted over the Company’s shares are
accounted as a financial iability with a corresponding deduction in equity

Share based payments

The Group engages n share based payment transactions in respect of services receved from certain of its employees
The grant date Fair value of share-based payment awards granted 1s recogmsed as an employee expense with a
cofresponding increase (n equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards

The fair value of the shares granted is determined using valuation models, which take into account the terms and
conditions upon which the shares were granted, the exercise price of the shares, the risk free interest rate, the expected
volatihty of the Company’s share price and other relevant factors In the absence of market prices, the Fair value of the
instruments at the date of the grant 1s estimated using an appropnate valuation technique

The amount recognised as an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards for which the related service
and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is
based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting
date

For share based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment 1s
measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for diferences between expected and actual outcomes

For cash settled share based payment transactions, the fair value of the amount payable to the employee s recognised
as an expense with a corresponding increase in fiabihties The fairvalue s initially measured at grant date and spread
over the pertod during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment The fair value 1s measured
based on a valuation madel taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted The
liability 1s revalued at each balance sheet date and settlement date with any changes to Fair value being recognised in
the profit and loss account

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisibion date, 1 e when control (s
transferred to the Group Control is the power to gavern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtatn
benefits from its activities In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting nghts that currently
are exercisable

The Group measures goodwilt at the acquisition date as the fair value of the consideration transferred less the fair value
of the net 1dentifable assets acquired and habihities assumed

When the excess s negatuwve, the negative goodwill 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing retattonships Such
amounts are generaily recognised (n profit or loss

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred
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Accounting Pohcies {(continued)

Any contingent consideration payable (s measured at fair value at the acquisition date If the contingent constderation s
classified as equity, then it 1s not remeasured and settlement 1s accounted within equity Otherwise, subsequent changes
in the Fair vaiue of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit orloss

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of inancial statements in conformity with IFRS requires Management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabllities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported ameounts of income and expenses during the reporting period
Although these estimates are based on Management’s best knowledge of the amount, actual results ultimately

may differ from those estimates The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below

() Revenue recognttion
During 2012, the Group recewved income direct from ts credit card, payment services and tnsurance partners on
the basis of detailed contractual terms, rather than direct from the customer This required judgement in both
determining whether performance obligations have been delivered, and estimation of the appropriate revenue, and
Management have exercised judgement in both these respects

{/} Acquisitions

As set out in note 21, a portfolio of mortgage assets was purchased by the Company in 2012 Judgement was
necessary to determine whether the acquisitton was a business combination or an asset purchase Management has
determuwned that the acquisition was an asset purchase as the assets were solely purchased without staff contracts
ar processes or other aspects of the business being transferred with them

{1} Acquisition accounting

Acquisition accounting involves a number of estimation techriques, including the determination of the fairvalue
of assets and habilities at acqunsition, the fair value of consideration and the determination of the appropriate
depreciation period for non-current assets acquired Management’s estimates of the fair values in relation to the
acquisttion of Northern Rock plc are contained in note 21 The major judgements and estimates relate to the Fair
value of the mortgage and deposit books, the Fair value of the core depostt intangible and tax asset and the fair
value of the contingent consideration

(iv) Taxation and deferred tax assets

Taxation involves estimation techniques ta assess the hability in terms of possible outcomes The assessment of the
recoverability or otherwise of deferred tax assets 1s based mainly on the premise that the relevant subsidiary wall
generate sufficient profits in the medium term to realise the deferred tax assets

This 1s reviewed at each reporting date by the Directors with a detaded exercise ko establish the validity of profit
Forecasts and other relevant information wncluding timescales over which the profits are expected to anse and
the deferred tax asset reverse Deferred tax s determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date which are expected to apply when the related deferred taxis realised or the
deferred tax liability 15 settied

Following the acquistion of Northern Rock plc, Management reviewed the unrecogrised deferred tax balances within the
Company against forecasts of Future taxable profits This exercise demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Directors that a
deferred tax asset could be recogmised At 31 December 2012, a total deferred tax asset of €79 8m is recognised Note 26
provides further information

{(v) Contingent habuities

Through its partnershup agreement with MBNA durtng the year in respect of personal credit cards, certain
obligations payable in cash may anse iIf business volumes and activity do not reach pre-agreed targets
Management has utilised appropnate estimation and modelling techmgues to assess liabilities and exercised
judgement in respect of assumptions and estimates used
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Contingent consideration

As a result of the acquisition of Northern Rock pic on 1 January 2012, a contingent consideration of up to £80m ts
payable to HM Treasury upon a future profitable IPQ or sale of the business between 2012 and 2016 The amount
payable vartes on a shding scale depending on the date of completion of any IPQ or sale within the time window
The consideration payable starts at £80m 1n 2012 and falls to £50m 1n 2016 and ml the year after In accordance
with accounting standards, the hability has been measured throughout the period since acquisition and s

largely influenced by the macro-economic environment both in the UK and wider euro-zone region As the date

to crystallise the 2012 hability of £80m has now passed, the estimate has been updated to reflect both this and
continued low growth in the UK economy Accordingly, the estimate ofthe hiability has reduced by £13m to £5m at
the end of the year The key jJudgement relates to estimating the timing of any potential payment

(vu) Non-fAnancial assets

A review of non-financial assets for indications of impairment 1s undertaken at each reporting date Ifthere are
indicators of impairment, an estimate of the recoverable amount 1s made The recoverable amount of the asset

ts the higher of its Fair value less costs to sell and its value in use Management jJudgement was necessary in the
tmpatwrment assessment of the intangible assets, the investment in certain subsidiaries and the assets held in a
disposal group In the year ended 31 December 2011 the acquisition goodwill on Church House Trust Lumited was
considered to be impaired as set out in note 23

(v} Impairment losses on loans and advances

{ix)

)

Individual impairment losses on loans and advances are calculated based on an indwidual valuation of the underlying
asset Collective impairment losses on loans and advances are calculated using a statistical model The key assumptions
used 1 the model are the probability of any balance entering into default in the next twelve months as a result of an event
that had occurred prior to the balance sheet date, the probabihity of this default resulting in possession orwrite off, and
the subsequent loss incurred These key assumptions are based on observed data trends and are updated on a monthly
basis within the agreed methodology to ensure the impairment allowance 1s entirely reflective of the current portfolio The
accuracy of the impairment calculation would therefore be affected by unanticipated changes to the economic situation
and assumptions which differfrom actual outcomes To the extent that the loss given default differs by +/- 10%, the
impatrment allowance would be an estimated £0 8m (2011 €N} higher or £0 8rn (2011 £MNil} lower respectively

Fair value calculations

Fair value 1s defined as the value at which assets, labihities or pesitions could be closed out or sold in a transaction
with a willing and knowledgeable counterparty For the majority of instruments carried at fauwr value these are
determined by reference to quoted market prices Where these are not available, fair value 1s based upon cash flow
models, which use wherever possible independently sourced market parameters such as interest rate yield curves,
currency rates and option volatilities Other factors are also considered, such as counterparty credit quality and
ligudity Management must use judgement and estimates where not all necessary data can be externally sourced
orwhere factors specific to the Group’s holdings need to be considered The accuracy of the farr value calculations
would therefore be affected by unexpected market movements, inaccuractes within the models used compared
to actual cutcomes and incorrect assumptions For example, (f management were to use a tightening in the credit
spread of 10 basis ponts, the fairvalues of habudities (including denvatives) would increase from the reported farr
values by £16 5m (2011 £Nil)

Average hife of secured lending

IAS 39 requires interest earned from mortgage lending to be measured under the effective interest rate method
The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected Ife of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset
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{a)

Management must therefore use jJudgement to estimate the expected life of each instrument and hence the
expected cash flows relating to it The accuracy of the effective interest rate would therefore be affected by
unexpected market movements resulting in altered customer behaviour, inaccuracies in the models used compared
to actual outcomes and incorrect assumptions Management have reviewed expected average lives in the pertod
and the catch-up adjustment resulted in an income statement credit in the consohdated financial statements of
€15 3m driven by an expectation that, on an overall basis, loan lives are longer If the estimated average life of
secured loans were increased or reduced by one month, the value of such loans on the balance sheet would be
increased or decreased by €5 6m (2011 €N} and €5 5m (2011 £Nil) respectively

Farr value of identifiable net assets of Northern Rock ple

The acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2012 has been accounted forin accordance with applicable
accounting standards which require the recognition of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
thewr acquisttion-date fair values As part of this process, ik 1s also necessary to identify and recognise certain assets
and liabilities which are notincluded on the acquiree’s balance sheet such as a core deposit intangible {note 21)

The exercise to fair value the Northern Rock ple balance sheet was inherently subjective and required management
to make a number of assumptions and estimates fair values were established using discounted cash flow models

Durning 2012, the effects of the fair value adjustments have started to unwind and be recognised n the Group's

income statement The determination of the extent to which the adjustments unwind often requires significant
judgerment The unwind of the acquisition-date Fair values on both customer lending and customer accounts s

based on the estimated average life of the underlying asset or liability

{xn) Non-Core Tier One Notes

The Non-Core Tier One notes have both debt and equity features and are classified as a compound financial
nstrument The equity features include the perpetual life of the notes and the discretionary nature of dividends
The debt feature relates to a conversion mechanism whereby under certain scenanos the notes convert to ordinary
equity This conversion mechanism s a contingent settlement feature When valuing a debt component such as
this, management judgement 1s required on the probability of the conversion event occurring Management has
estimated the fair value of the debt component to be £150m with no element of the instrument being shown in
equity

(xut) Disposal group

The assets and habihties of Church House Trust Limited have been classified as held for sale within a disposal
group Management judgement was required in assessing whether the sale of Church House Trust Limited 1s highly
probable and s expected to complete within one year of being classified as a disposal group

{xwv} Provisions and Indemnification asset

A prowision has been recorded in these accounts in refation to the cost of remediating the interest charged to
customers who have been found to have letters and statements which were not in compliance wath the Consumer
Credit Act Management judgement was required 1n recognising the corresponding indemnification asset Full
details of the provision and the carresponding asset are provided in Note 31

1.32 Accounting developments

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations are mandatory for the first time for Anancial
years during 2012 and have been endorsed for adoption by the EU, but have no matertal inancial impact on the Group
These are apphcable from 1 January 2012 unless otherwise stated

)
()

Amendment to 1AS 12, ‘Income taxes' on deferred tax

Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets (effective for annual
pertods begqinning From 1 July 2011)
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1 33 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and the early
adoption of standards
The Group has not early adopted any standards or interpretations during 2012

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are relevant to the Group have been
issued and have been endorsed by the EU but are not effective for Anancial years beginning 1 January 2012

(1) Amendment to IAS 1, Presentation of Anancial statements, on other comprehensive income {(OCI)

(1) Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financiat Liabihities
(i) IFRS 10, Consolidated Ainancial statements

(tv) IFRS 11, joint arrangements

(v) IFRS 12, Disclosures of interests in other entities

(vi) IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(vi) IAS 19, (revised 2011), Employee benefits

(vu) IAS 27, Separate financial statements

(1} 1AS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures

(x) Amendment to IAS 32, Financial Instruments Presentation on offsetting Anancial assets and Anancial habilities

The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are relevant to the Group have been
issued but are not effective for financial years beginning 1 January 2012 and have not been endorsed by the EU

{) IFRS 9, Financial instruments

Phase [l of IFRS 9 may affect the way a company reports hedging instruments and how the companies treat the
neffective proportion of these instruments This phase received an expesure draft in December 2011 and has passed

IFRS 9 has an effective date of January 2015
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2 interest Income
2012 2011
Em £m
On loans and advances to customers 598 4 13
On loans and advances to banks 16 05
Oninvestment securities 190 13
On cash and balances with central banks 122 -
Other interest 21 07
Total 6333 38

Interest accrued on individually impaired assets was £0 6m (2011 £0 3m}

3 Interest Expense
2012 2011
€m £m
On retail customer accounts 465 2 10
On other customer accounts 06 R
On deposits by banks o4 -
On debt secunties in ssue 279 -
Other 39 11
Total 498 0 21
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4. Other Operating Income
Total operating income represents net interest income, fees and commission income and other operating income

Other operating income 1s attributable to the sale and management of stocks and shares ISAs, pensions, authorised unit
trusts, the marketing of credit cards, general insurance and other financial services products

Total operating income is derived in the United Kingdom and relates to trade with third parties and continuing

operations
2012 2011
Em £m

Gross credit card income 835 1163
Rewnbursed marketing costs (38) (83
Net credit card income 797 1080
Investment and protection income 299 267
Other* 05 15
Total 1101 136 2

* Other includes commisston on donations, interest recewed from related parties and other sundry income

o o e
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Total Operating Expenses

2012 2011
£m £m

Wages and salaries gs8 264
Social security costs 112 34
Other pension costs 80 19
Employee share option scheme 25 14
Total employee costs 1075 331
Other operating expenses (see below) 154 4 813
Total 2619 1144
Other operating expenses includes
Hire of equipment, 54 -
Property rentals 100 21
Remuneration of auditors (see below) 12 06
Depreciation of owned fixed assets 82 24
Amortisation of intangible assets 85 09
Costs of acquiring businesses 130 160
Impawrment of intangible assets - 46
Marketing costs 29 1 205
Total expenses includes exceptional costs of €0 8m (2011 €Nil} related to restructuring the Group
Employee Information
The monthly average number of persons (including Directors) employed by the Group was as follows

2012 2011
Full time 2,300 340
Part time 485 77
Total 2,785 417

The Company did not directly employ any staff durning the year
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Services provided by the Group's auditor and network firms
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditor as detailed below

2012 2011

£m £m

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's accounts 01 01
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services

The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 05 02

Audit related assurance services 03 -

Tax adwvisory services 02 -

Other assurance services 01 -

Corporate finance services - 03

Total 12 06

All amounts payable to the auditors have been charged to Virgin Money Management Services Lumited and Virgin Money
plc, subsidiary undertakings of the Company

Retirement Benehft Obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme, forits Directors and employees The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Company in an independently adrmumistered fund The Group made contributions
of £8 Om (2011 £1 9m) dunng the year There were no unpaid contnbutions outstanding at the yearend {2011 £Nil)

Employee Share Schemes

The Group puts in place share schemes for employees to reward good business performance and to incentivise growth
forthe future

The four existing Group employee share schemes are listed below 1n chrenological order

Existing Group schemes

On 7 October 2011, an equity based option scheme was set up for a senior individual with a hurdle valuation of €471 5m
over a three year vesting penod A valuation model was used to determine the value of the shares which took into
account the exercise price of shares, current share pnice, risk free interest rate and expected share price volatility An
option to subscribe for up to 64,384 shares was 1ssued when the scheme was set up On 19 June 2012, the scheme was
modified by the Board such that the number of option shares would be increased to 65,824 In line with the rules of the
scheme, one third of the shares vested in Cctober 2012, however, none of these have yet been exercised

On 27 January 2012, the 2012 Growth Scheme was introduced primarily targeted at senior executive positions

Shares were granted at a price of £0 001 per share The scheme 1s designed to enable participants to share in the
continued growth of the Group above an intial valuation of £849m plus an annual increase in the value of the business
Participants do this by subscribing for “A” ordinary shares in the Company Holders are entitled to receive a return on the
shares granted (n the event of a prescribed exit event —flotation of the company, share sale or business sale — occurring
prior ko 1January 2022 This scheme 1s governed by the Articles of Associabion of the Company and 1s deemed to be an
equity settled scheme and has been accounted for as such Participants have to remain in employment or be deemed a
good leaver to continue to qualify for the scheme




Virgin Money Group Annual Report 2012 | 51

Notes to the Financial Statements

Forthe year ended 31 Decemnber 2012

7. Employee Share Schemes (continued)

Movements in the number of shares outstanding at 31 December 2012

Shares in exastence at 1 January 2012 -

Granted 1,143,833
Forfeited (81,703}
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 1,062,130

Exercisable at 31 December 2012 -

The farr value of the shares was determined using a valuation model The significant inputs into the model were net
asset value, the hurdle rate specified in the Articles of Assaciation, a discount Factor, the prabability of a vesting event
occurnng and the assumed lapse rate of employees

In late 2012, a notwonal (phantem) share scheme for senior individuals was established The scheme 1s designed to
comply with FSA requirements for deferral and clawback on treatment of annual bonuses The scheme has been
accounted for as a cash settled scheme

A further equity settled scheme for all staff below executive level has also been established The purpose 1s to allow
employees to share in the future success and growth of the company by granting an award to acquire a number of
shares to each relevant employee The award will vest on the earlier of (1) the Company undertaking a Flotation or Share
Sale (as defined in the Company’s Articles of Association) or (u) at such other time as determined at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee

Scheme maturnities

The acquisition of Northern Rock plc by the Company was deemed to be a qualifying investment event under the terms
of the Long Term Incentive Scheme, Phantom Cash Schemes and Northern Rock plc LTIPs As a consequence, all share
classes of existing schemes were deemed to be fully vested or lapsed at 31 December 2011

An amount totalling £0 2m (2011 £0 5m) has been recagnised in respect of equity settled schemes and an amount
totaling £2 3m {2011 £0 9m) has been recogmsed in respect of cash settled schemes

8 Directors’ Remuneration

2012 20M
£m £m

Remuneration
Remuneration pad to Executive Directors 12 12
Company pension contributions to defned contnbution pension schemes 01 01
Total Remuneration For Executive Directors 13 13
Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors 09 06

Total Directors’ remuneration 22 19
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Directors’ Remuneration {continued)

During the year retirement benefits were accruing to two Directors (2011 two) in respect of defined contribution

pension schemes

The highest paid director received remuneration of £0 8m (2011 £0 9m)

The value of the Company’s contributions to a defined contnbution pension scheme 1 respect of the highest paid
director amounted to less than £0 1m (2011 less than €0 1m)

In 2012, remuneration was patd to six Non-Executive Directors (2011 six)

Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

On advances

On advances  secured on
secured on  residential On
residential buytolet  unsecured
property property loans Total
£m £m £m €m
2012
Group
At 1 Janvuary 2012 03 - - 03
Acquired through business combinations 62 03 01 66
Increase n allowance during the year net of recoveries
reflected in the Income Statement 27 03 - 30
Amounts written off during the year (17 {02) - (19
Transferred to dispesal group {0 2) - - 02
As at 31 December 2012 73 04 01 78
On advances
On advances secured on
secured on residential On
restdential buyto let unsecured
property property loans Total
£m Em £m £m
2011
Group
At 1 January 2011 05 - - 05
Increase in allowance during the year net of recoveries
reflected in the Income Statement - - - -
Amounts written off during the year (02} - - (02)
As at 31 December 2011 03 - - 03

. e e
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10. Taxahtion

2012 201
Current tax £m £m
Profits subject to corporation tax - 104
Adjustments wn respect of prior periods - -
Total current tax - 104
Deferred tax
Recognition of deferred tax unprovided in prior periods {73 5) -
Unwind of deferred tax on fair value adjustments 56 -
Effect of change in taxrates 01 01
Total deferred tax (67 8) 01
Total tax (credit) / charge (67 8) 105
Deferred tax credited to available For sale reserve (0 5) -

The deferred tax credited to available for sale reserve of £0 5m s the total tax relating to (tems in other comprehensive
income

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard
weighted average rate of UK corporation tax of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) as follows

2012 2011
Em €m
Profit for the period 1506 235
Taxat effective corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 369 62
Effects of
Expenses not deductible For tax purposes 45 53
Income not taxable (28) {02)
Unwind of fair value adjustments not taxable 12 -
Negative goodwill credit not taxable (34 1) -
Unrecognised deferred tax on capttal allowances in excess of depreciation - 05)
Recognition of deferred tax unprovided in prior periods (74 6) -
Available for sale adjustments 32 -
Effect of change \n tax rate 03 01
Adjustments n respect of prior periods - (02)
Uhilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses brought Forward - 07
Other timing difference - 05
Total tax (credit)/charge (67 8) 105

The changes announced in HM Government's March 2011 Budget Staterment that the corporation tax rate would reduce
to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014 was further changed such that from 1 April 2014 the corporation tax rate for large companies
willbe 21%




54 | Virgin Money Group Annual Report 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

11

Analysis of Financial Assets and Finanaial Liabilities by Measurement Basis

Financial Derwvatives in
liabilities at Availlable Derwvatives IAS 39 hedges
amortised Loans and for sale not in IAS Fair value Cash Row

Group cost  recewables securtties 39 hedges hedges hedges Total

€m £m €m £m €m €m
2012
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
central banks - 1,6045 - - - - 1,6045
Denvative financial
instruments - - - 216 1362 32 1610
Loans and advances
to banks - 13102 - - - - 1,310 2
Loans and advances
to customers - 16,761 1 - - - - 16,761 1
Investment securities - 373 1,497 0 - - - 1,5343
Accrued income - 10 - - - - 10
Total inancial assets - 197141 1,497 0 216 1362 32 21,3721
Non financial assets 459 3
Total assets - 19,7141 1,497 0 216 1362 32 21,8314
Financial habilities
Deposits by banks 34 - - - - - 34
Customer accounts 18,006 7 - - - - - 18,006 7
Debt securities in 1ssue 2,266 6 - - - - - 2,266 6
Dernvative financtal
instruments - - - 297 2545 14 2856
Accruals 2020 - - - - - 2020
Total Anancial labilities 20,4787 - - 297 2545 14 20,764 3
Non financial labilities 3123
Total habilities 20,4787 - - 297 2545 14 21,076 6
Equity 7548
Total habihities and equity 20,478 7 - - 297 2545 14 21,8314
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12

Analysis of Financial Assets and Finanaial Liabilities by Measurement Basis (continued)

Finanaal Derwvatives in
liabilities at Available  Denvatives IAS 39 hedges
amortised Loans and for sale not in IAS Fair value Cash flow

Group cost receivables securities 39 hedges hedges hedges Total

£m £m £m £m Em £m £m
2011
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
central banks - 628 - - - - 628
Derwvative financial instruments - - - 09 - - 09
Loans and advances
to banks - 801 8 - - - - 8018
Leans and advances
Lo customers - 176 - - - - 176
Investment securities - - 46 - - - 46
Accrued income - 53 - - - - 53
Total financial assets - 8875 46 09 - - 8930
Non financtal assets 873
Total assets - 8875 46 o9 - - 9803
Financial habihities
Deposits by banks 2538 - - - B - - - 2538
Customer accounts 1107 - - - - - 1107
Debt secunties imissue - - - - - - -
Dervative financial instruments - - - - - - -
Accruals 449 - - - - - 449
Total Anancial habilities 409 4 - - - - - 409 4
Non financial habilities 356
Totak habilittes 409 4 - - - - - 4450
Equity 5353
Total habilities and equity 409 4 - - - - - 9803

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivatents comprise the following balances with less than
three months maturity from the date of acquisition

2012 2011

£m Em

Cash and balances at central banks 1,586 2 628
Loans and advances to banks 1,3102 7943
Total 2,896 4 8571

The Company had £17 1m (2011 €772 Bm) of loans and advances to credit institutions repayable on demand at the
year end The 2011 figure of £772 8m ncludes £747m which relates to the funds to be transferred to HM Treasury on
1 January 2012 in paid consideration for the acquisition of Northern Rock plc
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13 Cash and Balances with Central Banks ‘
2012 2011 i

£€m £m
{
Included in cash and cash equivalents 1,586 2 628 '
Mandatory reserve deposits with central banks 183 - {
Total 1,604 5 628 !

Mandatory reserves with central banks are not available for use \n day to day operations

14 Disposal Group

The assets (£79 6m) and habilities (£54 3m) of the disposal group comprise those of Church House Trust Limited,

a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company at 31 December 2012 In advance of disposal, £46 6m of deposits will be
transferred to Virgin Money plc These liabilities are not included in the disposal group The Directors consider a sale
te be highly probable and that this dispasal will occur wathen twelve months of classification as a disposal group In
accordance with IFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued assets’, the assets and habilities are classified |
as a disposal group \

A breakdown of the assets and habtlities of the disposal group s provided in the table below ‘

2012
£m ‘

Assets
Loans and advances to banks 96
Loans and advances to customers 156
Investment secunties 541
Property, plant and equipment 03
Total Assets 796
Liabihbties
Customer accounts 537 |
Accruals and deferred income 05
Amaounts due to group undertakings 01

Total Liabilhities 543
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15 Loans and Advances to Banks

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

€m £m tm Em

Fixed rate - - 09 7728

Varable rate 1,310 2 8018 162 -

Total 1,310 2 8018 171 7728

16 Loans and Advances to Customers

2012 2011

£€m €m

Advances secured on residential property not subject to securitisation 92,5109 179

Advances secured on restdential property subject to securitisation 53925 -

- 14,903 4 179

Residential buy to let loans not subject to securitisation 1,865 2 -

Total advances secured on residential property 16,768 6 179

Unsecured foans not subject to securitisation 03 -

Gross loans and advances te customers 16,768 9 179

Impairment atlowance (see note 9} (7 8) {03

Net loans and advances to customers 16,761 1 17 6
Loans to customers by rate

Fixed rate 10,759 0 -

Variable rate 6,002 1 179

Total 16,761 1 176

in addition to the above, Fair value adjustments of portfohio hedging amount to €133 0m {2011 ENil) This amount
represents the uplife in loans and advances to customers to Fair value under accounting rules where the assets are
included in a portfolio hedge refationship Such relationships are estabiished to protect the Group from interest rate
risk on fixed rate products (see note 38} and the fair value of the interest rate swaps which form the other part of the
relationship are reflected in denvative inancial instruments
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17. Secuntisation

Securitisation 1s a means used by the Group to fund an etement of its mortgage portfolio These securitised advances
are subject to non-recourse finance arrangements These advances have been transferred at their principal value to
Special Purpose Entities {"SPEs”) and have been funded through the 1ssue of amortising mortgage backed securities to
investors The transfers do not meet the cntena for asset derecognition in IAS 39 as the Group has retained the rnisks and
rewards of the assets As a result, the Group Consolidated Financial Statements inctude the results, assets and habilities
of the securitisation SPEs, on a line by line basis

The balances of assets and lilabdities in relation to secuntisation notes in 1ssue at 31 December 2012 withwn the Group
balance sheet are as follows

2012 2011
£€m £m
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 2945 -
Loans and advances to customers 53925 -
investments 197 0 -
Deferred tax asset 52 -
Total assets 5,889 2 -
Liabihties
Debt securities i 1ssue 2,266 6 -
Deposits by banks 27 -
Derwvative Rnancial instruments 54 -
Other habilities 51 -
Total labilities 2,2798 -

The following table sets out the carrying amount of financial assets that did not qualify for derecognition and their
assoclated habilities Where relevant, the table also sets out the net position of the Fair value of inancial assets where
the counterparty to the associated liabilities has recourse only to the financial assets

2012 201

£m tm

Carrying amount of transferred assets 53925 -
Carrying amount of associated habilhities 2,266 6 -
Fairvalue of transferred assets 5,5305 -
Fair value of associated habihities 2,291 0 -

There were no transactions in the year where the Group transferred financial assets that should have been derecognised
in thewr entirety
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18 Investment Secunties

2012 2011
£m £m
Available for sale securities 1,497 0 46
Investment securtties held as loans and receivables 373 -
1,5343 46
{a) Available for sale secunties
2012 2011
€m €m
At Fair value
Listed 1,497 0 46
Unlisted - -
1,497 0 46
Fixed rate 1,2250 -
Variable rate 2720 46
1,497 0 46
The movement in avalable For sale securities was as follows
2012 201
£m £m
AL 1 January 46 798
Acquured through business combinations 1,235 4 -
Additions 31738 35
Disposals (sales and redemptions) (2,885 6) (78 7)
Exchange differences (0 5) -
Net gains on changes in fair value 23 4 -
Transferred to disposal group (54 1) -
At 31 December 1,497 0 46
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18 Investment Securities (continued)

(B) Investment secunties held as loans and receivables

2012 201
Carrying Carrying

Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
£m £m Em £m
Listed 373 353 - -
Unlisted - - - -
373 353 - -
Fixed rate secunties - - - -
Variable rate securities 373 353 - -
373 353 - -

These assets have not been derecognised as the Group has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
The corresponding counterparty hability 1s iIncluded within depesits by banks

Gawns on sale of avallable for sale secunties amounted to £16 9m (2011 £Nil) and were predominantly from the sale of

UK gilt holdings
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19 Investments in Subsidiaries

The following were subsidiaries of the Company

Name Class of Share Holding

Direct holdings

Virgin Money plc (Formerly Northern Rock plc) Ordinary 100%
Church House Trust Limited (Formerly Virgin Bank Limited) — held for sale Qrdinary 100%
Virgin Money Personal Financial Service Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Money Urnit Trust Managers Lumited Ordnary 100%
Virgin Money Management Services Limited Ordinary 100%
Virgin Money Gtving Limited Ordinary 100%
Challenger (Norwich) Limited* Ordinary 100%
indirect holdings

Virgin Card Lumited® Crdinary 100%
Virgin Money Norminees Lirited* Ordinary 100%

Virgin Money Cards Limited {Farmerly Virgin Money Limited)
—company sold on 18 January 2013 (see note 44) Ordinary 100%

Northern Rock Limited® Ordinary 100%
Northern Rock Guernsey Limited Ordinary 100%

* Indicates dormant company

The following compantes are SPEs established i connection with the Group’s securitisation programme Although the
Company has no direct or indirect ownership interest in these companies, they are accounted for as subsidiaries in the
Group Thisis because they are principally engaged n providing a source of long term funding to the Group, which in
substance means the Group has the nghts to all benehts from the activities of the SPEs They are therefore effectively
controlted by the Group

Name Nature of business
Gosforth Funding ple Issue of secuntised notes
Gosforth Funding 2011-1 plc Issue of secunitised notes
Gosforth Funding 2012-1 plc Issue of secunitised notes
Gosforth Funding 2012-2 plc Issue of securitised notes
Gosforth Mortgages Trustee Limited Trust
Gosforth Mortgages Trustee 2011-1 Limited Trust
Gosforth Mortgages Trustee 2012-1 Limited Trust
Gosforth Mortgages Trustee 2012-2 Limited Trust
Gosforth Holdings Lunited Holding company
Gosforth Holdings 2011-1 Limuted Holding company
Gosforth Holdings 2012-1 Limited Holding company

Gosforth Heldings 2012-2 Limited Holding company
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19.

20

Investments in Subsidianes (continued)

Investment 1n subsidiary companies

€m

{
Company
Cost or valuation {
As at 1 january 2012 1287 (
Acquisition of Virgin Money plc (formerly Northern Rock ple) 1,0038
Sale of Virgin Money Cards Lunited {97) *
Revaluation of investment in Church House Trust Limited to recoverable amount prior to sale (see note 14) {46) .
Capital contribution - share based payment {see note 7} 02
At 31 December 2012 1,118 4

On 2 January 2012, subsequent to the acquisition of Virgin Money plc on 1 January 2012, Virgin Money Holdings (UK)
Limited sold 100% of its investment i1 Virgin Money Cards Limited (Formerly Virgin Money Limited) to Virgin Money plc ‘

Both Virgin Money Giving Limited and Virgin Money Management Services Limited have net habilities as at 31 December
2012 The carrying value of these investments 1s not considered material to the accounts and as such no impairment has
been made A letter of Group support has been provided

The carrying value of each investment (n Virgin Money Personal Financial Service Limited, Virgin Money Unit Trust
Managers Limited and Virgin Money plc are in excess of the net assets as at 31 December 2012 However, the carrying
values have been assessed by reference to the discounted value of expected future cash flows No provision for
impaiwrment has been made as a result of this assessment

Dernwvative Financial Instruments

Strategy in using derivative financial instruments

The Board has authensed the use of derivative instruments for the purpose of supporting the strategic and operational
business activities of the Group and reducing the rnisk of loss arising from changes in interest rates, exchange rates and

the FTSE 100 index All use of derwvative instruments within the Group 1s to hedge nsk exposure, and the Group takes no
trading positions in derivatives

The objective, when using any derivative instrument, is to ensure that the risk to reward profite of any transaction 1s
optimised The intention 1s Lo use only derwvatives to create econormnically effective hedges However, because of the
specific requirements of IAS 39 to obtain hedge accounting, not all econamic hedges are designated as accounting
hedges, etther because natural accounting offsets are expected or because complying with hedge accounting rules
would be especially onerous

Hedge Accounting

When transactions meet the criteria specified in 1AS 39, the Group applies fair vatue hedge accounting so that changes
in the Fair value of the underlying asset or lilability that are attnibutable to the hedged risk are recorded in the income
statement to offset the Fair value movement of the related derivative To qualify for hedge accounting the hedge
relationship must be clearly documented at inception and the derivative must be expected to be highly effective in
offsetting the hedged nisk Effectiveness must be tested throughout the life of the hedge relationship

Hedge accounting may be applied to three types of hedging relationships
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20 Denwvative Financial Instruments (continued)

{a} Fairvalue hedges

A fairvalue hedge 1s a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recogmised asset or hability that 1s attributable
to a particular risk and could affect profit orloss The most frequently used fair value hedges are

() hedging the interest rate nsk of a portfolio of prepayable fixed rate assets with interest rate denwvatives This
solution is used to establish a macro Fairvalue hedge for derwvatives hedging fixed rate mortgages

(1) hedging the interest rate risk of a portfolio of fAxed rate habilities with interest rate denivatives This solution s used
to establish a macro fair value hedge for dernwvatives hedging fixed rate savings

(1) hedging the interest rate risk of a single currency portfoho of sterling, US Dollar or Euro non-prepayable fixed rate
assels /labilities on a one-for-one basis or/and many-to-many basis with vanilla ixed/floating or oating/fixed
\nterest rate swaps

() hedging the interest rate and foreign currency exchange nisk of non-prepayable, foreign currency denominated
fixed rate assets or Labuities on a one-for-one basis with fixed/floating or floating/fixed cross currency interest rate
swaps

{b) Cash Aow hedges

The resulting accounting hedge relationship 1s to hedge floating rate sterting habilities,
(c} Net investment hedges

The Group has not destgnated any denvatives as net investment hedges in 2012 or 2011

The analysis below splits derivatives between those in accounting hedge relationships and those in economic hedge
relationships but not in accounting hedge relationships
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20. Denvative Financial Instruments {(continued)

2012 2001
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional notional
amount Assets Liabiities amount Assets Liabtlities
Group Em £m Em £m £m Em
Derwvatives in accounting hedge relationships
Derwvatives designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 17,0800 1362 (254 2) - - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps 218 - €3 - - -
Derwatives designated as cashflow hedges
Interest rate swaps 1,2380 32 (14 - - -
1394 (255 9) - . -
Derivatives in economic hedging relationships but not in accounting hedge relationships
Interest rate denwvatives
Interest rate swaps 4,426 5 214 {24 3) - - -
Currency derwvatives
Cross currency interest rate swaps 736 - (54) - - -
Options
Equity FTSE 100 options 02 - - 09 -
Total recogrised derivative assets/(Labtlities) 1610 {285 6) - 09 -
The Equity FTSE 100 options of £0 2m (2011 €0 9m) are held by the Company
Cash flow hedges
Pernods when cash flows are expected to occur and affect the income statement
2012 2011
£m Em
Within one year 37 -
In one to five years 76 -

e

— — _ e e
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2

Acquisitions

Virgin Money plc (Formerly Northern Rock plc)

On 1 January 2012, Virgin Money Holdings (UK) Limited acquired 100% of the ordinary share capitat of Northern
Rock plc, a savings and mortgage bank On 12 October 2012 following a rebranding exercise, Northern Rock plc was
renamed Virgin Money plc The acquisition has been an excellent it with the Group as it brings together entities with
complementary product sets and distnbution channels

The purchase consideration included £747m of cash and £150m of non-core tier one notes pard on 1 January 2012 In
addition, deferred consideration comprising realised gilt gains and net asset value adjustments of €72 9m was settled
on 28 June 2012 In the five years post acquisibion, a contingent consideration of up to £80m may be payable should
there be a profitable IPO or sale of the Company The £18m included in the table below represents the imtial estuinate of
the Fair value at acquisition date of this contingent consideration based on expectations of such an event taking place in
these timescales

The consideration was as follows

Em
Imtial cash proceeds 7470
Non-core tter one notes (NCT1) 1500
Additional consideration 729
Contingent consideration ) 180
Total consideration 9879

The acquisition of Virgin Money plc ('VM ple’) on 1 January 2012 was accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business
Combinatiens’, which required the recognition of the identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed at their
acquisition date Fair values As part of this process, it was also necessary to identify and recognise certain assets and
liabihities which are not included on the acquiree’s balance sheet, for example intangible assets The exercise to fair value
the Virgin Money plc balance sheet was subjective and required Management te make a number of assumptions and
estimates

The overall effect was to reduce the book value of the assets acquired by €49 5m, after the recogmbion of a core
deposit intangtble asset of £4 8m not previously included on the VM plc balance sheet This was offset by a reduction
tn the value of VM plc habilities of £26 2m, resulting 1n a net decrease in the value of net assets acquired of £23 3m In
accordance with IFRS 3, the Company had 12 months to finalise the fair value of Virgin Money plc No Further fair value
adjustments were identified Further information on the specific adjustments 1s provided in the table on the following

page
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21. Acquisitions (continued)

The finalised valuations and adjustments are provided below

Take on
Book value at balances at
31 December 1 January
Note 2011 Adjustments 2012
£m Em £m
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 2,752 1 - 2,7521
Derwvative financial instruments 1810 - 1810
Loans and advances to banks 8593 - 8593
Loans and advances to customers a 14,1590 (597) 14,0993
Retirement benefit asset 15 - 15
Investment securities 1,361 9 {18) 1,360 t
Intangible assets 46 - 46
Core deposit intangible asset b - 48 48
Deferred tax asset on farr value adjustment - 94 94
Property, plant and equipment 279 (2 2) 257
Other assets 346 - 346
Prepayments and accrued income 125 - 125
Total assets 19,394 4 (49 5} 19,3449
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 98 2 - 982
Customer accounts c 16,287 2 (28 9) 16,258 3
Customer accounts hetd for sale 3960 - 3960
Dernwvative financial instruments 2858 - 2858
Debt securities in 1ssue 9437 27 946 4
Other iabilities 624 - 62 4
Accruals and deferred income 1565 - 156.5
Current income tax lability 65 - 65
Provisions for habihites and charges 78 - 78
Total habilities 18,2441 (26 2) 18,217 9
Net assets acquired 1.1503 (23 3) 1,127 0
Negahive goodwill credit
Fair value of net assets acquired 1,127 0
Total consideration 9879
Negative goodwill credit d 1391
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21,

22

Acquisitiens (continued)

Notes and adjustments

a) Mortgage balances were adjusted to Fair value using discounted cash flow models which used benchmark interest
rates The adjustment refiects the movement in credit spreads since the lending was originated

b) Anntangible asset was recogmsed in respect of the intninsic value of the retail savings book This will be amorkised
over its remaining useful life

¢) Deposit balances were adjusted to fair value using discounted cash flow models which used benchmark interest
rates

d} The negative goodwilt credit of £139 1 million was recognised in the income statement The discount to net asset
value paid by the Company and the resultant negative goodwill credit reflects the difficult economic environment
tn the UK, the loss making nature of Northern Rock plc, and also depressed valuations in general in the UK banking
sector

Mortgage book portfolio

On 20 )uly 2012 Virgin Money plc {(a wholly owned subsidiary) entered into a transaction to acquire a mortgage portfolio
of Northern Rock (Asset Management) plc onginated ioans from Northern Rock (Asset Management) plc (“NRAM”) for a
purchase consideration of £466 4m, paud in cash

Collateral Pledged and Received

Cash collateral is given and received as part of normal derivative operations At 31 December 2012, €157 7m
(2011 £Nil) had been pledged by the Group and £0 7m (2011 £Nu) had been received as cash collateral by the Group

The Company has pledged collateral of €0 4m (2011 £Nul)
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23

Intangible Assets

Core deposit

intangible Goodwill Software Tota!
Group €m Em £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 january 2012 - 46 257 303
Acquired through business combinations 48 - 46 94
Acquisitions - - 149 149
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2012 48 46 452 546
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 january 2012 - 46 67 113
Charge for the year 17 - 68 85
Bisposals - - - -
At 31 December 2012 17 46 135 198
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2012 - - 190 190
At 31 December 2012 31 - 317 348
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2011 - 46 154 200
Acquisitions - - 103 103
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2011 - 46 257 303
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 January 2011 - - 50 50
Charge for the year - - 17 17
Disposals - - - -
Impawrment - 46 - 46
At 31 December 2011 - 46 67 113
Carrying amounts
At 1 Janvary 2011 - 46 104 150
At 31 December 2011 - - 190 190

I
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24. Property, Plant & Egquipment
Plant, equipment
Land and fixtures, fittings

2012 buildings and vehicles Total
£m Em £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 82 109 191
Acquired through business combinations 110 145 255
Additiens 399 114 513
Disposals {0 1) (19 (20
Assets within disposal group {04) - {04)
At 31 December 2012 586 349 935
Depreciation and impairment {osses
AL 1 January 2012 22 61 83
Depreciation for the year 22 60 82
Disposals - {032) 02
At 31 December 2012 44 119 163
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2012 60 48 108
At 31 December 2012 542 230 772

in June 2012 the Group completed the purchase of its operational headguarters in Newcastle upon Tyne together with buldings at
two othersites tn the North East of England The total acquisition cost, tncluding stamp duty, was £39 5m The acquisition is included

within land and buildings additions of £39 9m in the table above

Plant, equipment
Land and fixtures, Rttings

2011 buildings and vehicles Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2011 27 70 97
Additions 55 41 96
Disposals - 02 (02)
At 31 December 2011 82 109 191
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 January 2011 15 54 69
Depreciation for the year o7 09 16
Disposals - (02) (02)
At 31 December 2011 22 61 83
Carrying amounts
At 1January 2011 12 16 28
At 31 December 2011 60 48 108
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25 Other Assets

Group Company

2012 20M 2012 20M

£€m €m £m €m

Trade debtors 175 431 - -
Amounts owed from related parties 77 114 572 499
Group rehief owed from related parties - - 21 64
Indemnification asset 60 - - -
Other 60 08 - 05
Total 372 553 593 568

The Group's exposure to credit risk and impatrment losses related to trade and other receivables 1s disclosed i note 38

Included within trade debtors ts an amount of €Nil (2011 €20 3m) related to the Group's share from the proceeds of a
sale of credit card defaulted and non defaulted debt by MBNA, and £8 3m (2011 £12 4m) related to income due from

MBNA n respect of revenues spread over a 10 year peried (see note 1 7)

Detatls of the indemmfication asset are contained in note 31

26. Deferred Tax Asset

Based on thetr interpretation of the iming and level of reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, in ine with
relevant accounting standards, the Directors conclude that deferred tax assets of £79 8m should be recagrused at the

balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets were not recognised in respect of gross assets of £26 4m (2011 £34 9m) Deferred tax assets have

been recognised at 23% in respect of the following items

Group Company

2012 20Mm 2012 2011
€m £m €m Em

Asset
Excess of depreciation over capital allowances 98 - - -
Unused tax losses 611 19 - -
Short term biming differences 107 03 03 04
Change in accounting basis on adoption of iIFRS (18) - - -
Recogmised deferred tax assets 798 22 03 04

The jJudgement required in the assessment of whether to recognise a deferred tax asset 1s set out in note 1 31(iv) ta
these accounts A deferred tax asset in respect of the substdiary Virgin Money plc was not recognised at acquisition on
1 January 2012 but subsequently recognised because in the period since acquisition, Management have taken certain

achons to have greater certainty about the profitability going forward
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27

28

29

Deposits by Banks

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
€£m €m £€m £m
Fixed rate deposits - 2538 - 2538
Vanable rate deposits 34 - - -
Total 34 2538 - 2538

On 29 December 2011, the Company borrowed £253m {plus arrangement and commitment fees) on a short term loan
Facility from Royal Bank of Scotland at an interest rate of 0 5% The loan, together with interest accrued thereon was

repaid in full on 3 January 2012

Customer Accounts

Group Company
202 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m €m
Fixed rate deposits 7,7298 - - -
Variable rate deposits 10,276 9 1107 - -
Total 18,006 7 1107 - -
Other Liabilities
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 20M
Em Em €m Em
Non Core Tier 1 Notes 1500 - 1500 -
Trade creditors 37 113 - -
Other taxes and social security costs 37 21 - -
QOther creditors 540 102 54 44
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 1730 167 4
Total 2114 236 3284 1718

The Non Core Tter 1 Notes of £150m were 1ssued to HM Treasury on 1 January 2012 as part consideration in the
acquisition of Northern Rock plec The notes have a discretionary coupon of 10 5% per annum, beginrung on 1 January

2013

The Group'’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables 1s disclosed in note 38
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30. Accruatls and Deferred Income

2012 2011
Group £€m Em
Accrued interest 177 8 -
Deferred income 242 182
Other accruals 40 2 267
Total 242 2 449

Deferred income represents income advanced from partners that will be recogmised in future periods

The number above includes €3 8m (2011 €1 2m) relating to the estimated redemption cost of points earned by members

of the Credit Cards Rewards Scheme Reward pouwnts ceased to beissued on retau transactions made using the Virgin Credit
Card after 1 August 2007 However any existing points that had been accumulated up to that date are still avallable to
redeem, although the timing of the redemption and ultimate payment 1s entirely dependent on the actions of reward scherne
members The amount included above reflects Management’s assessment of likely value of Future potnts redemptions

31 Prowisions for Liabihties and Charges
Customer
redress Restructuring Other Total

2012 2011 2012 20N 2012 2011 2012 20M
€m £m £m E€m €m £m £m €m

The movement in provisions was as follows
At 1 January - - - - - - - -
Transferred \n through business combinations - - 0B - 70 - 78 -
Charged wn the year 60 - - - 12 - 72 -
Ubilised in the year - - (0 8) - (7 8) - (8 6) -
At 31 December 60 - - - 04 - 64 -

On 11 December 2012 the Economic Secretary to the Treasury reieased a statement regarding customers of Northern
Rock (Asset Management) plc (NRAM) who have mortgage loan accounts which are regulated under the Consumer
Credit Act {CCA) Following changes to the CCA implemented in 2008 before the separation of NRAM and Northern
Rock plc, certain letters and statements have been sent to customers that do not fully comply with the requirements
prescribed by the CCA The NRAM customers affected are entitled to redress by NRAM for interest charged on the
relevant loans and NRAM has announced its intention to remediate such customers

As a result of this announcement, Virgin Money undertook a review of the mortgage toans acquired in its acquisition of
Northern Rockplc on 1 January 2012 A number of Virgin Money mortgage custormners were found te have CCA elements
in thewr mortgage loans and, due to the same non-compliance error 1dentified by NRAM, those customers have been
sent documentation that does not Fully comply with the CCA Virgin Money has taken steps to ensure that all relevant
customer documentation now contains the full wording required by the CCA

The total cost ta Virgin Money of remecdiating the interest charged to the affected customers, on the same basis as
NRAM propose, 1s estimated at €6rn, and 1s reflected tn these accounts The relevant customers do not need to take any
action and will be contacted in due course

Virgin Money has discussed the position with both UKFl and NRAM and 1s conRdent that an agreement will be reached
with NRAM whereby the cost of refunds of interest due to Virgin Money customers will be met by NRAM  This reflects
the intention of all parties that CCA regulated mortgage loans were to be heid by NRAM not Northern Rock plc at the
pount of its acqunsition by Virgin Money Therefore a corresponding asset has been reflected in these accounts (note 25)

The provision for customer redress and for restructuring are both expected to be fully utilised within the next 12 months
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33

34

Share Capital

2012 2012 2011 2011
Number €m Number £m

Allotted, called up and Fully pad
Ordnary Shares of £0 001 each 38,742,729 - 38,742,729 -
A Ordnary Shares of £Q 001 each 1,102,982 - - -
Deferred Shares of £0 001 each 731,113 - 731,113 -
Total 40,576,824 - 39,473,842 -

On 29 February 2012, the Company 1ssued 1,102,982 £0 001 shares for a consideration of £1,103

In 2011, warrants which had been issued by the Company in 2010, were cancelled in return for 562,268 Ordinary
€0 001 shares for a deemed value of £10,833,338 and, as such, a notional loss of £612,808 was recognised in the
mcome statement

On 31 December 2011, the Company 1ssued a further 16,867,323 Ordinary £0 001 shares for a consideration of
£369,000,000 These shares were subscribed in Full by WLR IVVM I LLC, Virgin Financial Services UK Limited, and
Stanhope Investments The shares were issued to fund the acquisition of Northern Rock ple which occurred on 1 January
2012 (see note 21 For Further details)

Share Premium Account

2012 201

£m €m

At 1 )anuary 5092 1345

Premuwm on shares 1ssued (n the year - 3639

Premium on shares 1ssued following cancellation of warrants {note 32) - 108

As at 31 December 509 2 5092
Own Shares

2012 2011

£m £m

Employee Benefit Trust 62 22

Al ‘A’ Ordinary shares granted under the terms of the Long Term Incentive Scheme (see note 7} became fully vested

in March 2011 As part of an arrangement to allow holders of these shares an opportunity to access some of the value
increase in the Virgin Money Group since the original grant date, the Company established an Employee Beneht Trust
{“EBT")1n 2011 The Company funded the EBT by means of a cash loan and 1s therefore considered to be the sponsoring
entity The EBT enterad into a put/call optan agreement with the employees to acquire shares over a 3 year penod and
recognised a liablity of £4,416,101 with a correspending deduction in Other Reserves in 2011 InJanuary 2012, the
Trust accelerated the option agreements and acquired all shares for value of £4,416,101
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35

36

Own Shares {continued)

In April 2012, certain Non-Executive Directors were invited by the Board to participate in an annual acquisition scheme
to acquire a number of ordinary shares in April 2012, 2013 and 2014 at the then current market value acquisttion price
The cut off date 1s 15 April each year The number of shares and market value of the shares avaiiable for acquisition waill
be communicated prior to 1 April annually and is to be payable out of participants’ own funds

in Apnl 2012, some of the shares held by the EBT were sold to Non-Executive Directors of the Group

Other Reserves

(a) Available For sale reserve

2012 201
Em €m
At 1 January 02) 02)
Net gawns from changes in fair value 481 -
MNet gains on disposal transferred to net income (27 4) -
Amounts transferred to net income due to hedge accounting (11 7) -
Amortisation of far value differences in respect of securities transferred to toans and recevables 23 -
Deferred tax 05 -
At 31 December 116 (02)
{b) Cash flow hedge reserve
2012 2011
£m E€m
At 1 January - -
Amounts recognised in equity (127) -
Amounts transferred to interest payable 14 -
At 31 December (11 3) -

Contingent Consideration

As a result of the acquisition of Northern Rock plc on 1 January 2012, a contingent consideration of up to £80m 1s
payable to UKFI upon a future profitable IPO or sale of the business between 2012 and 2016 The amount payable varies
on a sliding scale depending on the date of completion of any IPQ or sale within the time window The consideration
payable starts at £80m 1n 2012 and Falis to £50m in 2016 and nil the year after In accordance with accounting
standards, the lability has been measured throughout the pertod since acquisition and is largely influenced by the
macro-economic environment both i the UK and wider euro-zane region As the date to crystallise the 2012 habity of
£80m has now passed the estimate has been updated to refiect both this and conttnued low growth in the UK economy
Accordingly, the estimate of the habihity has reduced by £13m to £5m at the end of the year
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Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (“FSCS”) 1s the UK’s statutory fund of last resort For custarmers of
authorised financial services firms and pays compensatton tf a firm ts unable to pay claims against it The FSCS has
borrowed from HM Treasury to fund the compensation costs associated with institutions that Failed in 2008 and will
recewve the receipts from asset sales, surplus cash flows and other recoveries from these institutions in the future

The FSCS meets its obligations by raising management expense levies These include amounts to cover the interest on
tks borrowings and compensatton levies on the industry Each deposit taking institution contributes in proportion to its
share of total protected deposits

Fortheyearto 31 December 2012 the Group has paid or made provision for levies of £6 2m (2011 €0 4m) covenng
Scheme Years 2012/2013 and 2013/2014 in relation to ks deposit business, and for the Scheme Year 2012/2013 1n
relation to its investiment business The scheme year 2013/141s based on the financial year to 31 December 2012

IFthe FSCS does not recewve sufficient funds from the faited institutions to repay HM Treasury in Full, it will raise
compensation levies On 8 March 2012 the FSCS announced that it expects to receve full repayment of the debt in
retation to Bradford & Bingley plc and that it expects to raise compensation levies in respect of the other failed banks
beginning in 2013/2014 n light of market conditions In January 2013, the FSCS has estimated the shortfali resulting
from the cash flows to be received from the failed institutions as £788m Accordingly a provision for the Company's
estimated share of these compensation levies of €6 1m {2011 €N} has been made in these financial statements

Risk Management and Monitoring

Through its normal operations the Group 1s exposed to a variety of risks The Board of Directors s responsible for
determining strategies and policies for the Group The Group maintains a nsk governance structure that strengthens
nsk evaluation and management, in addition to posttioning the Group to manage the changing regulatory environment
in an efficient and effective manner

The principal nsks that the Group manages are as foliows

Credit nsk the risk that a borrower or counterparty fails to pay the interest, or to repay the capital, on a loan or other
financial instrument All tending s carefully underwntten, and the performance of individuat loans is monttored on an
ongoing basis

Market rnisk the risk that the value of, or net income arwsing from, the Company’s assets and liabilities changes as a
result of changes to interest rates or exchange rates Market risk is managed and momtored on an ongoing basis against
Board approved nisk appetite and policy

Liqutdity nsk the niskthat the Group 1s unable to meet its abligations as they fall due The Company’s position is
monitored by Management on a regular basts and hiquidity 1s supported by intercompany facilities if required

Operational risk {Unaudited '} the nsk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events A range of indicators covering the Company's operations 1s reviewed by Management
and the Board regularly throughout the year All key business processes are subject to periodic reviews by the Group’s
Risk and Internal Audit teams to ensure that appropnate controls are in place and operating effectively

Legal nsk {Unaudited '} the nisk of legal sanction, matenal financial loss orioss of reputation that the Company
may suffer as a result of its Failure to comply with the law, inadequately document its contractual arrangements or
inadequately assess and implement changes required by forthcoming legislation or emerging case law The Virgin
Money Group legal department supports the Company in meeting its contractual obligations and assessing legal
developments

"These notes are presented within the audited Anancial statements but contain supplementary information not required
by the applicable Ainancial framework Consequently they are highlighted as unaudited
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fisk Management and Monitonng (continued)

Requlatory risk (Unaudited ') the risk that the Company Fails to comply with its regulatory requirements with the
potential that the Company

~ treats customers unfairly, potentially exposing them te financial or other detriment
- s subject to legal or regulatory sanction

~ suffers reputational damage

— s used forthe purposes of financial crime

1. Credit risk

Credit risk comprises both retail and wholesale credit nsk within the Group Retau credit nsle arises from secured
(mortgages) and unsecured lending (current accounts) Wholesale credit nisk anises through the placement of funds and
investments by Treasury

11 Retal Credit Risk

The following sections outhne our approach to management of credit nsk through the setting of appetite and policy and
an overview of the measurement of credit risk in the Group

111 Retail Credit Risk Appetite

Credit nsk appetite ts an expression of boundaries that provide clear guidance on the level of nsk exposure that the
Board considers acceptable and 1n ine with corporate strategy A revised credit risk appetite aligned to the current
business strategy and external environment was approved by the Board in March 2012 Risk appetite is subject to an
annual review process and limits are regularly monitored and reported to the Risk Management Committee

The Board’s hugh level expression of a desired credit nsk appetite is also transtated into specific maximum nsk limits in
relation to new product and new lending policy parameters within which Management must operate in addition there
are whole book parameters reflecting the inherent nisks of previous lending, with trigger levels above which specific
control actions may be inttiated Monitoring and reporting against the risk appetite and the associated imits and
trnggers were in place for both new lending and the whole book dunng 2012

112 Retail Lending Policy Critenia

New lending 1s hightly controlled using an appropriate mix of statistical analysis and judgement New business quality
ts monitored and controlled by the New Business Strategy team using scoring techmques and a number of other core
control components as Foilows

* Credit scoring Autornated statistically-based credit scoring methods are used in the decision making process for
new and exisking customers These are subject to regular monitonng, review and approval

+  Affordability, underwnting and mandates To lend responsibly, the Group employs affordability models based upon
customers’ income and outgoings, and expenenced underwriters Lo determine the overall inancial situation of
customers and theiwr ability to repay credit The ability to agree a credit agreement wath a customer 1s prescribed in
Board delegated authonty levels to specific individuals who have the requisite credit skills

+ Valuations Property assets are independently valued at mortgage inception Where a revaluation 1s required, this is
led by specialist Property Risk personnel using a range of valuation methods

In addition to the control of new lending the retail lending policy has key contrel components for the existing portfolio,
including

*  Monitonng and performance The credit portfolios are monitored regularly, with a range of prescribed reports
distributed to key stakeholders Detailed management information 1s provided to the Credit Risk Committee,
Business Performance Committee and Risk Committee

‘These notes are presented within the audited financial statements but contain supplementary information not required
by the applicable financial framework Consequently they are highlighted as unaudited
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Risk Management and Momitoring (continued)

» Collections and recoveries The Group’s debt management process 1s led by the Chief Operating Officer A team
of specialists manage all aspects of collections and recoveries with the aim of helping custorners who encounter
financial difficulties to achieve a positive outcome For the customer and the Group

»  Stress testing and scenario analysis, to simulate a range of outcomes and calculate the nsk tmpact of adverse
macroeconomic conditions
1 1.3 Retail Credit Risk Measurement

Internal rating based models are used to assess customers’ probability of default, exposure at default and loss given
default The rating models use statistical analysis and are subject to internal monitoring and change control

These credit nsk modeis are used throughout the Group to support the analytical elements of the credit risk
management framework, tn particular the quantitative nsk assessment part of the credit approval process, ongaing
credit monitoring as well as portfolio level analysis and reporting

Models used for credit risk measurement by the Group Fall into three broad categories

*  Probability of Defauit (PD)/customer credit grade — these models assess the probability that a customer will fai to
make full and timely repayment of credit abhigations over a time horizen There are a number of different credit
rating models in use across the Group, each of which considers particular customer characteristics The credit rating
models use a combination of quantitative tnputs, such as transaction charactenstics, recent financial performance,
credit bureau data and customer behaviour

+  Exposure At Default (EAD) — these rmodels estimate an account’s exposure, were it to default

»  Loss Given Default {LGD) - these models estimate the expected loss that may be suffered by the Group on a credit
fFacility tn the event of default The Group's LGD models take into account the type of borrower and any secunty held

12 Wholesale Credit Risk

Wholesale credit counterparty risk arises through Treasury hedging and investment activities and related balance sheet
management requirements

Wholesale credit risk can be broken down into two efements
+ the risk of default or rating migration of derivative counterparties
» thensk of default ar rating migration of issuers in the Treasury investment portfolio

The Board has approved a framework for maximum credit counterparty himits agatnst which total exposures are
continually monitored and controlled The credit imt structure adopts a nsk based matrix whereby lower rated
counterparties are offered lower imits Single counterparties are assigned maximum limits in accordance with the
ratings matrux, based on the lowest rating afforded to any part of the counterparty group
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Risk Management and Monitoring (continued)

1.3 Breakdown of Credit Risk Exposures

The following tables provide a breakdown of the retail and wholesale credit portfolios

Maximum credit nisk exposure at 31 December before provisions for impairment and before coliateral and other credit

enhancements
2012 2011
£Em £m
On balance sheet
Cash and balances with central banks 1,604 5 628
Investment securities 1,534 3 46
Loans and advances ko banks 1,310 2 8018
Derwvatwve Anancial instruments 1610 09
Loans and advances to customers 16,7689 179
21,3789 8880
Off halance sheet
L.oan commitments 1,3855 -
2012
Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality
Loans and Residential Unsecured

advances to banks

mortgage loans

personal loans

£m Em €m
Neither past due norimparred 1,3102 16,563 8 03
Past due but not imparred - 193 6 -
Impaired - 112 -
Total 13102 16,768 6 03
2011
Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality
Loans and Residential Unsecured

advances to banks

mortgage loans

personal loans

Em €m £€m
Neither past due nor impaired 8018 143 -
Past due but not impared - 29 -
Impaired - 07 -
Total 8018 179 -
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The credit quality of loans neither past due nor impaired may be assessed by reference to credit ratings and to
probability default bandings allocated to loans by the Group's internal credit assessment models as set out in the tables
below

Loans and advances to banks

2012 20M

€m €m

AA - 7926

AA- 157 -

A+ 752 92

A 1,2038 -

A- 155 -

Total 1,3102 8018
Loans and advances by credit quality For retail secured and unsecured lending

2012 2011

Residential Unsecured Residential Unsecured

mortgage personal mortgage personal

Neither past due nor impaired loans loans loans loans

PD by internal banding £m £m £m €m

Very low risk 149016 03 43 -

Low risk 10435 - 63 -

Medium nisk 5163 - 33 -

Hgher nisk 102 4 - 04 -

Total 16,563 8 03 143 -
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38 Risk Management and Monitoring (continued)
Past due not impaired loans’

2012

Loans and
advances to banks

Residential
mortgage loans

Unsecured
personal leans

€m £m €m
Up to one month - - -
In one to three months - 1179 -
In three to sixmonths - 485 -
Over sixmonths - 272 -
Total - 193 6 -
2011
Leoans and Residenhal Unsecured

advances to banks

mortgage loans

persanal loans

£Em £m Em

Up to one month - 09 -

In one to three months - 10 -

In three to six months - 09 -

Over sixmonths - 01 -

Total - 29 -
'An asset (s impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount

Investment secunities by credit quahty*
2012 2011

investment Investment

securities securities

Available for held as loans Available for held as loans

sale secunties

and recewvables

sale securities

and recewvables

€m Em £m £m
Neither past due nor impaired 1,497 0 373 46 -
Past due but not impaired - - - -
impatred - - - -
Total 14970 373 46 -

-—
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The credit quahty of investment secunities by reference to credit ratings 15 set out in the table below

Credit quality for investment securities

2012 201
Investment Investment
securities securibies
Available for held as loans Avallable for held as loans
sale secunities and recevables sale securities and recevables
€m £m Em £m
AAA 1,292 5 283 39 -
AA 335 50 - -
AA- 830 40 - -
A+ 264 - 03 -
A 616 - 04 -
Total ) - 1,497 0 373 46 -

1 4 Retall and Wholesale Credit Risk Coliateral

Due to the nature of the Group’s exposures (comprising pnmarily residential mortgages), collateral held against credit
risk as at 31 December 2012 was as follows

*  Residential lending in the form of mortgage charges over residential property amounted to £32,217 3m (2011
£43 6m) Valuations on residential property are carried out on a quarterly basis

» Counterparty credit risk on derwvative transactions (in the form of cash) and n respect of cash collateral held agasnst
counterparty credit nsk at 31 December 2012 amounted to £3 8m (2011 £Nil)
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The table below shows an estimate of the Fair value of collateral held against financial assets

e

2012

Loans and Residenhal Derivative
advances mortgage financial
to hanks loans instruments
£m £m Em
Neaither past due nor impaired
Property - 31,898 6 -
Cash - - 38
Past due but not impaired
Property - 3033 -
Cash - - -
Impaired
Property - 15 4 -
Cash - - -
Total - 32,2173 38
201
Loans and Residential Denvative
advances mortgage financial
to banks loans instruments
€m £m £m
Neither past due nor impaired
Property - 372 -
Cash - - -
Past due but not impaired
Property - 51 -
Cash - - -
impaired
Property - 13 -
Cash - - -
Total - 43 6 -

. — o e
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Risk Management and Monitoring (continued)

1.5 Credit Impairment

All credit portfolios are regularly reviewed to assess for impairment A loan or portfoho of loans 1s considered to be
impaired ifthere 1s any observable data indicating that there has been a measurable decrease (n the estimated future
cash flows or their imings This wilt include identification of

+  Significant financial difficulty of the customer

»  Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

»  The borrower entering bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
* Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers

In the retail mortgage portfolio, indvidual impairments may occur where the Group has taken possession of the
property or where specific circumstances indicate that a loss 1s ikely to be incurred In addition, collective impairment
allowances across the retatl credit portfolios are calculated on a portfolio basis using Formulae which take into account
the probability of default, the roll to possession and wnte-off and the loss given default, less the value of any security
held These parameters are kept under regular review to ensure that they reflect current economic circumstances and
risk profile

in addition the Group prowvides a number of forbearance tools to enable mortgage customers who are in temporary
financial difficulty to rematn in thewr property The key forbearance tools used by the Group are as follows

* Arrangement to pay less than the contractual payrment
»  Transferto an interest anly method of repayment

* Extension to the original martgage term

= Capuitalisation of arrears

= Arrangements with customers where the agreed mortgage term has expired and the mortgage loan is not repaid in
Full

At 31 December 2012 residential mortgage toans of £534 8m (2011 £Nil) that are neither past due norimpaired had
benefited from a forbearance tool The provisitoning methodoelogy recognises the use of forbearance tools and these
mortgage loans attract a higher level of provision when compared to rest of the up to date portfolio

16 Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk ts managed for retail and wholesale credit risk at portfolio, product, and counterparty levels
This1s carried out through the application of hmmits relating to geographical spread, the size of loan relative to property
value (at counterparty and portfolio levels) and the concentration of borrowers in each rnisk band

The Group has mantaned its conservative appreach to European sovereign debt As at 31 December 2012 there are
no outstanding exposures to Portugal, Ireland, ftaly, Greece and Spain, either from a direct sovereign exposure or from
institutions domicited in that country The only direct European sovereign debt exposure as at 31 December 2012 15 a
Finnish government bond with a carrying value of £100 1Tm (2011 ENil)

The following table breaks down the Group's mawn credit exposures by geographical region at therr carrying amounts
Exposures are allocated to regions based on the country of domicile of the counterparty
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Credit Concentrations. Geographic Regions

Other

2012 UK Europe us countries Total

£m £m Em £m £m

Dertwvative financial instruments 104 4 78 228 260 1610

Loans and advances to banks 1,3102 - - - 13102
Loans and advances to customers

Residential mortgage lending 16,7609 - - - 16,760 9

Unsecured lending 02 - - - 02

Available for sale securities 7008 5951 930 1081 14970

Investment secunties held as loans and recewvables 328 - - 45 373

As at 31 December 2012 18,909 3 6029 1158 1386 19,766 6

Other

2011 UK Europe us countries Total

€m £m £m £m £m

Derwvative Ananaal instruments 09 - - - 09

Loans and advances to banks 8018 - - - 8018
Loans and advances Lo customers

Residential mortgage lending 176 - - - 17 6

Unsecured lending - - - - -

Avallable for sale securities 46 - - - 46

Investment securities held as loans and recewvables - - - - -

As at 31 December 2011 8249 - - - 8249
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An analysis of the mortgage book by loan to value (LTV) ratios 1s as follows

Residential mortgage loans

Credit concentration LTV bands 2012 2011
LTV (%) — indexed value as at financial year end £m £m
0% - 70% 9,898 6 115
70% - 80% 39970 30
80% - 90% 23876 10
90% - 100% 4227 06
>100% 627 18
Total 16,768 6 17 9

Residential mortgage loans

Credit concentrations loan size bandings 2012 20M
Outstanding balance £m Em
0 - £100k 4,226 8 138
£100k - £250k 8,156 1 13
£250k - £500k 3,044 4 28
£500k - £1m 1,147 6 -
£1m- €2 5m 1821 -
>£25m 116 -
Total 16,768 6 179

2. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of, or net income anising from, the Groups assets and habilities changes as a result
of changes to interest rates or exchange rates Market niskis managed and monitored on an ongoing basis against Board
approved risk appetite and policy The Group does not trade or make markets in any areas and market nisk arises only as
a consequence of carrying out and supporting core business activities The only material nisk that the Group 1s expesed
to 15 Interest Rate Risk

2 1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate sensitivity anses from the relationship between interest rates and net interest income resulting from the
periodic repricing of assets and liabilities The Group offers fixed rate residential mortgages and savings products on
which the interest rate patd by or to the customer s fixed for an agreed period of ime at the start of the contract The
Group closely monitors mortgage redemption and repayment patterns and reduces the mismatch of the expected
maturity profiles of its interest earning assets and interest bearing habilities through the use of hedging strategies
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Interest Rate Risk within the Group can be subdivided into the following risks

Mismatch The effect that variabions in the relationship between different ponts on the yield curve have on the
value of fixed rate assets and habilities

Optionality The effect that variations in early repayment or mortgage drawdowns have on expected run off profiles
of fixed rate loans and therefore on the effectiveness of hedging transactions

Basis Created where balance sheet assets and liabilities are sensitive to different underlying base reference
measures e g indices or rates Basis risk arises for example where mortgage interest rates are iinked to the Bank of
England Base rate but the liabilities funding them are linked to LIBOR

Reset Exposure to the iming of repricing of asset and labilities or to a sudden spike in a key underlying base
reference measure

Foreign Exchange {FX) Volatility in earnings resulting frorn movements in exchange rates altering the sterling value
of unmatched foreign currency income streams, assets and liabilities

Pipeline Created by the uncertainty around the actual volume of fixed rate products sold versus the volume forecast

Asset/Swap Spread The risk caused by the rate used to value an asset being different to the derivabive used to
hedge the interest rate risk of the asset

Risk exposures are controlled using position limits which reqguire the Group’s Treasury function to manage exposure to
movements in the market

The Group uses a number of measures to monitor and control interest rate nsk and sensitivity One such measure
evaluates the difference (n principal value between assets and habilities repricing in various gap periods

The followtng table gives an analysis of the repricing periods of assets and habilities on the balance sheet at
31 December 2012

Items are allocated to time bands in the table below by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate
repricing date and the residual matunty date
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Risk Management and Monitoning {continued)

Assets and Liabilities by Tenor

After After After
3 months 6 months 1year Non interest
Within but wathin but within but within After bearing

2012 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years 5 years funds Total

£m £Em £m £m £m €m £m
Assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 15788 - - - - 257 1,6045
Disposal group assets 796 - - - - - 796
Loans and advances to banks 13218 - - - - (116} 1.3102
L.oans and advances to
customers 6,444 0 6893 2,4987 6,950 1 901 889 16,7611
Investment securities 5507 - 277 449 3 455 0 516 1,53430
Other assets - - - - - 5417 5417
Total assets 99749 689 3 2,526 4 73994 5451 6963 21,8314
Liabiities
BDeposits by banks 34 - - - - - 34
Disposal group liabdities 543 - - - - - 543
Customer accounts 10,621 2 1,555 4 31468 2,437 2 - 246 1 18,0067
Debt securiies in 1ssue 2,265 4 - - - - 12 2,266 6
Other ltabilities - - - - - 745 6 7456
Equity - - - - - 7548 7548
Total habilibies and equity 12,9443 1,555 4 3,146 8 2,4372 - 17477 21,831 40
Notional values of
derwvatives affecting
mterest rate sensitivity 38554 9432 8727 (4,683 5) (98¢ 4} (14} -
Total interest rate
sensitivity gap 8860 771 2523 2787 (4413) (1,0528) -
Cumulative interest rate
sensitivity gap 8860 963 1 1,215 4 1,494 1 10528 - -
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After After After
3 months 6 months 1 year Non interest
within but within but withun but within After bearing

2011 3 months 6 months 1 year 5 years Jyears funds Total

Em £m £m Em €m Em £m
Assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 628 - - - - - 628
Loans and advances to banks 8018 - - - - - 8018
Loans and advances to
customers 176 - - - - - 176
Investment securities 46 - - - - - 46
Other assets - - - - - 926 926
Total assets 886 8 - - - - 926 979.4
Liatnhibies
Deposits by banks 2538 - - - - - 2538
Customer accounts 1107 - - - - - 1107
Debt securities in1ssue - - - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - - 805 805
Equity - - - - - 5353 5353
Total habilities and equity 3645 - - - - 6158 980 3
Notional values of
denwvatives affecting
\nterest rate sensitivity - - - - - 09 09
Total interest rate
sensibiity gap 5223 - - - - {522 3) -
Cumnuiative interest
rate sensitivity gap 5223 5223 5223 5223 5223 - -

P o

-

o e mle
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2 2 Currency Risk

Currency risk arises as a result of the Group having assets, habilities and denvative items that are denominated in
currencies other than sterling as a result of normal banking actwvities, including wholesale funding

The Group has a mimimal appetite for Forewgn exchange nisk but allows the purchase of both USD and EUR denominated
assets that fall within the Funding & Liquidity and Wholesale Credit Risk policies The Group minimises exchange rate
exposures by ustng cross currency swaps and farward foreign exchange contracts, or by matching exposures with assets
denominated in the same currency

At 31 December 2012, assets exceeded habilities denominated tn € by €0 1m, or £0 1m after taking into account Foreign
currency derwvatives (2011 ENW/ENI)

Assets and habilities at sterling carrying values denominated in Euros at the balance sheet date

2012 201
€ €
£€m £m

Assets
Loans and advances to banks 01 -
Investment securibigs 203 -
Other assets 01 -
Total assets 205 -
Total habdities - -
Notional value of derivatives affecting currency exposures 204 -
Net position 01 -

3 Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of being unable to pay liabilities as they fall due and arises from the mismatch in cash
flows generated from current and expected assets, habilities and dervatives The Group has a hquidity management
framework, with a hquidity nsk appetite based on maintaimng sufficient liquid resources to survive a variety of stress
events

Under the framework

*  The Group aims to ensure that there 1s adequate liquidity within the Group by operating within a clear and well
dehned risk appetite The risk appetite statement directly reflects the overall iguidity adequacy rule to “at all times
maintain hquudity resources which are adequate, both in amount and quality, to ensure there ts no significant risk
that its labilwes cannot be met as they fall due” We assess the amount of iquidity we need to hold by running
potential stress scenarios and measuring these outcomes against the quality and quantity of our iquidity portfohios
The liquidity portfolio 1s held predominantly in regulatory eligible buffer liquidity as defined by the FSA

*  The mimimum level of liquidity held in buffer hquud assets 1s defined by our Internal Liguidity Requirement {ILR) This
i1s sufficient to meet our core hquidity stress test We hold additional liguidity over and above this and have arranged
contingent hiquidity capacity to provide additional prudence over curIiR level
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= The Company has made use of the Funding for Lending Scheme (“FLS”), a scheme launched by the Bank of England
and HM Treasury in July 2012 which provides loans to banks and buillding societies with the aim of stimulating
lending withun the economy The Company has retained €3,075 1 million of notes 1ssued by securitisation Special
Purpose Entities (“SPEs”) in the Restdential Mortgage Backed Securitisatton programime These notes are available
for use as collateral for funding and liguidity purposes This includes the Company’s participation in the FLS At
31 December 2012 the Company had FLS drawings of £510 0 million

The table below analyses the Group's assets and Labulities into refevant maturity groupings based on the remaiming
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date Amounts shown in respect of loans and advances to
customers include fair value adjustments of portfolio hedging

2012
Within 3-12 1-5 After
3 months months years 5years Total
Em £m £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 1,586 2 - - 183 1,604 5
Disposal group assets - 796 - - 796
Investment securities 196 6 746 7407 5224 15343
Derwvatives inancial assets 134 42 4 925 127 1610
Loans and advances to banks 1,310 2 - - - 1,3102
Loans and advances to customers 1602 4595 2,6953 13,5791 16,894 1
Other assets 456 93 916 1012 2477
Total assets 33122 665 4 3.6201 14,2337 21,8314
Liabihities
Customer accounts 13,8056 2,716 0 1,485 1 - 18,006 7
Deposits by banks 34 - - - 34
Disposal group habilities - 543 - - 543
Debt securittes in issue - - - 2,266 6 2,266 6
Dervative inancial instruments 54 17 2 1889 741 2856
Other habilities 2197 596 255 1552 4600
Total habilities 14,034 1 28471 1,699 5 24959 21,076 6
Net liquidity gap (10,721 9) (2,1817) 1,9206 11,7378 754 8

™ T T R Y
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38. Risk Management and Monitoring (continued)

2011
' Within 3-12 1-5 After
) 3 months months years 5 years Total
) £€m £m Em £m £m
Assets
) Cash and balances at central banks 628 - - - 628
) Investment securities 04 07 35 - 46
Derivative inancial assets 05 04 - - 09
' Loans and advances to banks 8018 - - - 8018
) Loans and advances to customers 01 05 31 142 179
) Other assets 606 - 23 297 926
Total assets 926 2 16 89 43 9 a806
)
) Liabilibies
Customer accounts 764 249 86 08 1107
) Deposits by banks 2538 - - - 2538
) Other liabilities 490 133 182 - 805
) Total habihties 3792 382 268 08 4450
) Net hquidity gap 5470 {36 6) (17 9) 431 5356
)
)
)
)
b
)
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Risk Management and Monmitoring (continued)

{
3 1 Non-derwvative cash outflows
The table below anatyses the Group's non-derivative cash outflows into relevant matunity grouptngs based on the {
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows These differ from balance sheet values due to the effects of discounting on certain balance
sheet items and due to the inclusion of contractual Future interest flows ‘
2012
Within 3-6 6 months 1to Over (
3 months months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total (
€m €m £tm €m £m £m {
Deposits by banks 07 - - - - o7
Customer accounts 11,969 6 802 5 15525 2,657 6 08 16,9830 {
11,9703 8025 1,5525 2,657 6 08 169837 '
{
2011
Within 3-6 & months 1to Over {
3 months months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
l
Em Em £m €m £Em £m ‘
Deposits by banks 2538 - - - - 2538
Customer accounts 1107 - - - - 1107 {
3645 - - - - 3645
{
{
{
{
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3 2 Dernvative cash flows

The Following table analyses cash flows For the Group’s dervative financial habulities that will be settled on a net basis
into relevant matunty groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Derivatives inctuded within this analysis are
single currency (interest rate swaps

2012
Withun 3-6 6 maonths 1te Qver
3 months months to 1year 5 years 5 years Total
Em £€m €m £m £m £m
Derivatives in economic but not
accounting hedges (35) (22) (40 {10 6) (4 6) (249
Cerwatives in accounting hedge
relationships (28 4) {25 8) {55 0) (144 9) 06 (253 5)
(319) {28 0) {59 0) (155 5) {40) (278 4}

2011 Denvative hatnlity cashflows £Nil

The Following table analyses cash Rows for the Group's dervative inancial liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis
into retevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturnty
date The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Denvatives tncluded within this analysis are
cross currency interest rate swaps and Forward currency contracts

2012
Within 3-6 6 months 1to Over
3 months months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total

£m £m £m £€m £m £m
Denvatives in economic but not
accounting hedges
Outflows (39 5} (29 7) 61 44 (31 1) {1108)
inflows 366 276 48 22 225 937

(29) {21) (13) (22) (8 6) (171)

2011 Denvative habilhity cashflows €Nl

Total Fair value gains and tosses on financial nstruments for 2012 amounted to £0 8 million (2017 €Nil} OF thus total
amount, £10 3 milion (2011 £Nul) related to hedge ineffectiveness on Fair value hedges, (€2 0 rmulhon) (2011 ENl) to
hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges and {€7 5 mullion) (2011 ENl) to Far value gains and losses on items not tn
hedge accounting relationships
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Risk Management and Monitoring {continued)

4 Operational Risk (unaudited)

The Group defines operational nsk as “the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events” This is in kne with the Basel Committee’s definition of operational risk In managing
operational risk, the Group considers indirect financial costs and regutatory, reputational and customer impacts

The Group currently has a waiver from the FSA, to allow us to adopt a combined approach to our Pillar | calculation in
2012, applying both Basic Indicator (BIA) and Standardised Approach (TSA) calculations This recogruses the Fact that
Virgin Money (a BIA bank} only completed the acquisition of Northern Rock (a TSA bank) at the start of 2012 While
Virgin Money intends to deliver TSA across the company, the former Virgin Money operations {Church House Trust
Limited, Virgin Money Unit Trust Managers Limited and Virgin Money Personal Financial Services Limited) will remain on
BIA for a transitional period to allow For the roll out of an enhanced operational nsk management methodology This roll
out s on target to be achieved in early 2013

VM plc adopts the Standardised Approach to Operational Risk management and external benchmarking has confirmed
that VM plc 1s in line with the FSA's related gqualifying criteria The business has a well documented nsk management
framewaork with appropriate reporting of nsk events and risk exposures to the Business Performance Committee

Business units and functions formally assess thewr operational risks on an ongoing basis via a prescribed Risk Control
Self Assessment (RCSA) process The RCSA analysts (s reviewed and updated to reflect changes to the nsk and controt
environment ansing from changes in products, processes and systems

5. Legal Risk (unaudited)

The Group defines legal risk as “the risk of legal sanction, material inancial loss or loss te reputation the Group
may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with the law, inadequately document its contractual arrangements or
inadequately assess and implement changes required by forthcoming legislation or emerging case law”

The Risk Management Framework includes a Legal Risk Management Policy within which the Board has set a zero risk
appetite (1 e full compliance)n relation to legal risk, and standards that the business 1s expected to operate within The
framework also includes the governance and policy controls to enable identification of key legal nisks, and of prevailing
and emerging legal nsk developments, 1ssues and trends The tmpacts of these developments on the Group are then
assessed by the business and Legal function

6. Regulatory Risk {(unaudited)
Regulatory risk is defined as the risk of the Group failing to comply with the iegal or regulatory requirements applying to

its arrangements and actwvities, with the potential consequences of

» Treating customers unfarrly, potentially exposing them to financial or other detriment
= Being subject to legal or regulatory sanctions

= Suffering reputational damage

= Bewmng used for the purposes of financial crime

To manage the nisk, the Group has a dedicated Regulatory Risk function reporting to the Chief Risk Officer The Risk
Management Framework includes a Regulatery Risk Policy within which the Board has set a zero nisk appetite {1 e full
compliance) (n relation to regulatory risk, and standards that the business (s expected to operate within The framework
also includes the governance and pohcy controls to enable identification of key regulatory nsks, and of prevailing and
emerging regulatory nsk developments, 1ssues and trends The impacts of these developments on the Group are then
assessed by the business and the Compliance function

-

-



Virgin Money Group Annual Report 2012 | 95

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

38 Risk Management and Monitoring {continued)

30.

In addition to ensuring compliance with new developments, the framework requires ongoing review and challenge of the
Group's comphance related processes and practices It also requires the monitoring of consistent application of policies,
on a nsk based approach The results of the reviews are reported to the Operational Risk and Comphance Committee,
Business Performance Committee and Risk Management Committee on a reqular basis

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabihities

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities nat
presented on the Group’s balance sheet at their fair value Assets are presented at bid prices, whereas offer prices are
used for habilities The accounting policy note at 1 8 sets out the key principles For estimating the Fair values of inancial
instruments This note provides some additional information 1n respect of Ainancial instruments carried at amortised
cost

Carrying value Faur value
2012 2011 2012 201
Em £m £m €m
Financial assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1,604 5 628 16045 628
Loans and advances to banks 13102 8018 1,3102 8018
Loans and advances to customers’ 16,8941 176 16,9127 176
Investment securities held as loans and recewables 373 - 353 -
Financial habihties
Deposits by banks 34 2538 34 2538
Customer accounts 18,006 7 1107 18,117 2 1107
Debt securities in 1ssue 2,266 6 - 2,266 6 -
Non core tier 1 notes 1500 - 1500 -

Valuation methods fFor calculations of Fawr values in this table are set out below

Cash and balances with central banks

Fair value approximates Lo carrying value because they have mimimal credit losses and are etther short term in nature or
reprice frequently

Loans and advances to banks

Fair value was estimated by using discounted cash Aows applying either market rates where practicable or rates offered
by other financial institutions For loans with similar characteristics The fair value of floating rate placements, fixed rate
placements with less than six months to maturity and overmight deposits 1s considered to approximate to their carrying
amount

'Amounts shown in respect of loans and advances to customers include fair vatue adjustments of portfolio hedging
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

Loans and advances to customers

The Group provides loans of varying rates and matunties to customers The Fair value of loans with vaniable interest
rates is considered to approximate to carrying value For loans with fixed interest rates, fair value was estimated by
discounttng cash flows using market rates or rates normally offered by the Group The change in interest rates since
the majority of these loans were onginated means that their Fair value can vary signihcantly from their carrying value
However, as the Group’s policy 1s to hedge fixed rate loans in respect of interest rate risk, this does not indicate that the
Group has an exposure to this difference in value

Investment secunties held as loans and receivables
Fair values are based on quoted prices where available or by using discounted cash flows applying market rates

Deposits by banks and customer accounts

Fair values of deposit labilities repayable on demand or with vanable interest rates are considered to approximate to
carrying value The Fair value of fixed interest deposits with less than six menths to maturity 1s therr carrying amount The
fair value of all other deposit liabilities was estimated using discounted cash flows, applying either market rates or rates
currently offered by the Group for deposits of similar remaining matunties

Non-Core Tter One Notes

There 1s no active market for these instruments The Fair value of these instruments is considered to be approximate to
their carrying value

Determination of Fair value

The table below summarnses the fair value measurement basis used for assets and habihities held on the balance sheet at
Fairvalue There are three levels to the hierarchy as follows

Level 1 - Quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, whether
directly {1 e as pnices) orindirectly (1 e derwved from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs})

2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments - 1610 - 1610
Avarlable for sale securities 1,3943 1027 - 1,497 0
Financial habthties
Derwvative inancial instruments - 2856 - 2856

Contingent consideration - - 50 50
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40

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilibies {continued)

2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m Em €m
Financial assets
Derwvatwve financial instruments - 09 - 09
Available for sale securities 46 - - 46

Finanaal habilities

Denwvakive Anancial instruments - - - -

Capital Resources

It s the Group's policy to manage a strong capital base to optimise shareholder returns whilst mamntaining capital
adequacy and sahisfying key stakeholders The Group manages its capital to meet the regulatory requirements
estabhshed by the regulator, the Financial Services Authorty

The Following table analyses the composition of the regulatory capital resources of the Group

2012 2011
Em €m
Core ier 1
Orduwnary share capitat - -
Share premium 509 2 5092
Retained earnings 2515 329
Total core tier 1 capital 7607 5421
Other tier 1
Non core tier 1 notes 1500 -
Total tier 1 capital 9107 -
Regulatory deductions {75 4) -
Total available capital resource 8353 5421

Capital ratio (unaudited) 19 9% 131 9%
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Off Balance Sheet Items
The table below summarises

Loan commitments

Contractual amounts to which the Group is committed for extension of credit to customers

Operating lease commitments

Miumum future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

Capital commitments

Capital commitments for the acquisition of bulddings and equipment

2012
Within In one to Qver

one year five years five years Total
£m €m £m £m
Loan commitments 6380 - 7475 1,3855

Operating lease commitments
Land and buildings 58 223 149 430
Other operating leases 54 14 - 68
Capttal commitments 24 - - 24
6516 237 7624 1,437 7

2011
Within Inone to Over

one year five years five years Total
£m Em £€m €m
Loan commitments - - - -

Operating lease commitments
Land and buldings 12 65 74 151
Other operating leases - - - -
Capital commitments - - - -
12 65 74 151
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42 Related Party Transactions

Group
The following transactions were carried out with related parties

Transaction value

Year ended Balance ocutstanding
31 December at 31 December

2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m Em

London Marathon sponsorship fees and trademark licence fees to
Virgin Enterpnises Ltd 61 33 19 -
Virgin Money Overseas Limited 06 07 77 93
Other costs to Virgin Management Group Companies 10 06 - 02

The Group incurs credit card commussions and air mile charges to Virgin Atlantic Airways Limited n respect of a
tnpartite credit card agreement with MBNA

The Group incurs credit card pownt of sale discount fees to Virgin Holidays Limited

On 25 February 2010, Virgin Money Cards Limited entered into a Sterling denominated loan agreement with Virgun
Money Overseas Limited Interest 1s charged at rate equivalent to Australian Dollar 12 month LIBOR plus 2 per cent per
annum

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties as part of normal banking bustness These
include deposits The volume of related party transactions cutstanding at the year end and related income and expense
forthe year are set out below

Directors and key

management
personnel
2012 201
€m £m
Deposits
Deposits outstanding at 1 January - -
Net amounts deposited 03 -
Deposits outstanding at 31 December 03 -

Interest income earned - -
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42 Related Party Transachions {centinued)

2012 201
£m £m

Directors and key management personnel
Salaries and other short term benefits 50 37
Share-based payments 15 14
Post-employment benefits 05 02
Total remuneration 70 53

Key management personnel refer to the Executive Cormmittee of the Virgin Money Group and Non-Executive Directors
Refer to notes 7 and 34 for detaul of share scheme transactions

Company.
The following transactions with subsidiaries occurred in the year

Transaction value

Year ended Balance outstanding
31 December As at
2012 2011 2012 2011
€m £m £m Em
Recharges and trading balances from subsidiaries 39 211 225 (28 7)
Loans to subsidiaries 41 16 1384 889
Gawn on transfer of substdiary to Virgin Money pic 3200 - - -

43. Parent Undertaking

No single entity or individual has a controlling interest in the Company The shareholder base of the Company includes
Four shareholders who together own more than 95% of the Ordinary shares with the rematnder of the shares held by a
combination of corporate and private shareholders, and the Employee Benefit Trust

- =
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Events After Balance Sheet Date

On 18 January 2013 the Group sold 100% of the ordinary share capital of Virgin Money Cards Lunited to MBNA Europe
Bank Limited (“MBNA"} for an overalt gain of £203 4m The principal activities of Virgin Money Cards Limited were the
marketing and direct distnbutwon of Virgin Money branded personal credit cards 1ssued by and under a partnership
agreement with MBNA Prior to the sale, all assets, iabihties and contracts not connected with the MBNA partnership
agreement were transferred to Virgin Money Cards Limuted’s immediate parent, Virgin Money plc a wholly owned
subsidiary undertaking

On the same day Virgin Money plc entered into a transactton to acquire approximately one third of the Virgin Money
branded perscnal credit card boockissued by MBNA, for a purchase consideration of £1,019 6m which was paid in cash
The assets were previously managed jountly by MBNA and Virgin Money Cards Lumited under a partnership agreement
The imitial Fair value of the assets acquired s estimated to be £1,019 6m with the credit card book being the only assets
acquired The gross contractuai amounts due for the credit card book acquired are £1,042 7m and the imibial estimate of
contractual cash flows that are not expected to be collected equate to the difference in this vatue to the fair vatue The
associated acquisition costs of £6 3m have been charged to the thcome statement in 2012 The rematnung two thirds of
the portfolio managed under the partnership agreement are now wholly owned by MBNA These assets will be rebranded
no laterthan March 2014 £5m of the gain on sale of Virgin Money Cards Limited will be deferred and recognised in
income over the rebranding period

This transaction allows the Virgin Money Group to broaden the product set offered to consumers and provides further
opportunities for growth - -
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